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Corporate Profile
NGl

China Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “Taifeng”)
is a leading manufacturer and retailer of high-end home textiles and
manufacturer of quality yarns in China. It is principally engaged in
the manufacturing of home textiles with research and development
(“R&D”), design, manufacturing and retail capabilities. It offers 1,600
varieties of bedding products including bed covers, pillows, pillow
cases, quilts and quilt covers. Its cotton yarns are mainly comprised of
fine count and high-count yarns with over 180 varieties.

Focusing its business on home textiles, the Group endeavours to
create the fashion of decorative home textiles for better lifestyle. It
enjoys distinct competitiveness and brand position supported by its
well-defined brand image, superior product design, comprehensive
marketing planning and extensive sales channels, which allow it to
become a major brand in the home textile industry and a trend-
setter of quality and stylish home textiles. The Group operates three
brands, namely “Taifeng”, “Kangshow” and “I & Co”, which cater for
difference target markets, including middle- and high-end markets,
and consumption preference. The Group strives to pursue innovation
in R&D and design and to offer new patterns and fabrics, production
techniques and accessories, so as to offer consumers unique home
and living culture and style. It is also dedicated to sustain the growth
in sales and operating results by improving its marketing model and
expanding the marketing network, which currently covers all major
provinces and cities across China, and establishing brand advantages.
As at 31 December, 2013, the Group had 262 dealers and 1,225
retail stores and concessions either directly operated or operated by
distributors.

TEZRERMEBRERAA ([ARA]XK[ZE
LR FREFRLELLERAHEMONEE B
ERERKAENE Ri-LE-TER B F
HEARFELNSHRERNEETERR
BEYRBER - T RmERE1,60050 BFERK
B-MEME BRBERRESRINER BYN
MWL RE BEBBI80H -

AEBBIRHITE BESIEREHR - Al
FEENES EREFR EREEH 28K
B RmREEFAEEENRA - EXRTEAR
MBEFENMBEEMN KARHITEBERER
BHRERGEEE -HETHS [RYE] - [REEK
FIR[BBER] =ZAKETRE 3IETRAEEM
BIHEES  2EmEPEmmBER BiEE
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BLEETE REERSHEMAIFED  BH
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Financial Highlights and Summary

MBRERBE

RESULTS E
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t+-HiLEE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=§f - =ZZ——% ZIZ-TH ZIZIThHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ABEFLT ARETT AREFT ARETFTT ARETT
Revenue e 2,147,618 2,401,049 2,152,167 1,846,177 1,354,068
Gross profits EH 627,588 949,470 829,684 639,581 396,331
Earnings before interest and BR#E - FLS AT
tax (‘EBIT") 452,499 767,842 645,700 516,186 319,981
Profit attributable to owners of ARRHEE AEGEF
the Company 207,482 518,076 440,103 416,790 248,288
Earnings per share - Basic (RMB) FREBF-EX
(ARET) 0.297 0.518 0.440 0.468 0.331
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENEE
As at 31 December
INT=EETr=E
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=f —T--f ZE——H ZZT-TF ZTTNEF
(Restateq)
(#5E7)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANBETT ANREETT AREFT AREFfn AREF7n
Total assets EEBE 3,545,863 2,998,321 2,248,861 2,089,977 1,169,922
Total debt BIEE 765,300 343,300 191,010 201,298 162,806
Total liabilities NG 1,221,506 919,446 602,062 682,194 483,721
Equity attributable to ARAERANEGEER
owners of the Company 2,324,357 2,078,875 1,646,799 1,407,783 686,201

Annual Report 2013 4 ¥



Financial Highlights and Summary
MBERERBE

FINANCIAL RATIOS

Br# be &

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t+-HLEE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
“E-=f —E--f ZT——% ZT-TH ZTTHNEF
(Restated)
(#E3))
Gross profits margins — overall ER R -8 29.2% 39.5% 38.6% 34.6% 29.3%
Gross profits margins — cotton yarns ~ E#| & — 474} 14.5% 15.4% 16.3% 18.5% 12.3%
Gross profits margins EFE— R

- bedding products 41.6% 56.3% 56.5% 53.2% 49.6%
EBIT margin BRE - A S AT AR 21.1% 32.0% 30.0% 28.0% 23.6%
Net profit margins 2= 13.9% 21.6% 20.4% 22.6% 18.3%
ROE EY: EEEEL 12.8% 24.9% 26.7% 29.6% 36.2%
ROA @ BERREY 8.4% 17.3% 19.6% 19.9% 21.2%
™ ROE is calculated based on profit after tax divided by total equity 0 R EEE RS 0] 37 K IR IE R T 1B 5 FI R LA 1 2 4B BB 5T
@ ROA s calculated based on profit after tax divided by total assets @ B[O 2R R RIS T 1 i FBR L 48 B

For the year ended 31 December
BE+T-A=1+-HLEE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
“E-=f ZZT-—-f ZT-——f =ZE-TF ZCZIZZNHE
(Restateq)
(#E3))
Trade receivables turnover FEWERFEER (B)

(days) 79 76 72 54 40
Trade payables turnover EftEZEER (B)?

(days) @ 17 22 35 35 31
Inventory turnover (days) @ FEE®H(A)A 19 26 35 35 47
Current ratio (times) BN (%) 3.3 2.8 2.9 2.4 1.4
Gearing ratio @ BEXRBBELERY 21.6% 11.4% 8.5% 9.6% 13.9%
Debt-to-equity @ RIAY 32.9% 16.5% 11.6% 14.3% 23.7%
™ Trade receivables turnover is calculated based on the average of the " JEEUBE 2 8 [ 4 p o 4 S B 1 JG A S Y BE

beginning and ending balance of trade receivables for a given year,
divided by revenue during the given year and multiplied by 365 days.

@ Trade payables turnover is calculated based on the average of the

€

“

®)

beginning and ending balance of trade payables for a given year divided
by cost of sales during the given year and multiplied by 365 days.

Inventory turnover is calculated based on the average of the beginning
and ending balance of inventory, net of impairment, for a given year,
divided by cost of sales during the given year and multiplied by 365 days.

Calculated as the total debts for the year, divided by total assets for the
year and multiplied by 100%. Debts are defined to include current and
non-current borrowings.

Calculated as the total debts for the year, divided by the equity for the
year and multiplied by 100%. Debts are defined to include current and
non-current borrowings. Equity is defined to include the non-controlling
interests.

@

3

“

®)

BAEERZ FIIEFEZ 5 EF RN Z Wz BT IA 365

AEHE-

JETBR 30 882 A 115 F F IR RAAR S 1R
HAEBZ FIERZIETFRENS B EK L FHF
HAB65H & -

FEHAEAEIETFRERBIERERS FEEHZ
FHE (HFEE) GZEEFREANS HEKLEH
FLA365HFE -

W FE A E TR F AR ETA100%51 5 < (B
BEECRRBRITHER -

L4 Py B A0 BB O PO 2 TN 100%41 8 - 508
ZEROIERDRIETBER - 252 TH OIS
R B -
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Financial Highlights and Summary
MBEREREE

Revenue contribution 2,401 Profit attributable to owners of the Company
e 3 B RK RATHER AEMGERER
(RMB million) 2,152 2148 (RMB million)
(AREEET) ’ (AREEET)
1,846
1,416
1,192 1,166
1,354
987
737 4
248
617
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2009 2010 2011 2012

Il Cotton yarns 1840
I Bedding products Fk i

EBIT margin and Net profit margin
BRBL - RIS ATF R R AL R

Gross profit margin

ERN=R

29.3% 29.2%
18.5%
12.3%
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2009 2010 2011 2012
O Gross profit margin - bedding products E /% — IR f O EBIT margin B&%t ~ T B RIF|E
O Gross profit margin - cotton yarns EF|& — 184> O Net profit margin # %=

O Gross profit margin - overall & FI|2& — 252
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®/E

To all shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company, | am
pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 December, 2013 to the shareholders of the Company.

Since 2013, the Chinese home textile industry has been struggling in
a difficult market environment. The immense pressure on many home
textile enterprises came from depressed home textile market demand
brought by the weak global economic recovery and the lacklustre
Chinese economic growth, coupled with rising production and
logistic costs as well as the premium of Chinese cotton prices over
international ones. In spite of such tough operating environment and
market fluctuation, the Group recorded sales revenue of RMB2,147.6
million for the year ended 31 December, 2013, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 10.6%. Gross profit dropped by 33.9% year-on-
year to RMB627.6 million. As a result of the poor market demand,
the Group’s results of operation fell below expectations with reduced
growth in economic indicators such as revenue and profit.

Given the Chinese economic situation and the development trend of
the home textile sector, it is anticipated that the home textile industry
will remain relatively stable in general. From a domestic economic
perspective, the government will shift its focus from curbing demand
to increasing supply in implementing austerity measures for the real
estate sector, thus offering favourable conditions for the home textile
industry. The persistent urbanisation will also allow home textile
enterprises to make a stable and objective market forecast. From a
global point of view, the recovery of the global economy, particularly
major developed countries and regions including the United States,
Europe and Japan, will facilitate a stable growth of the home textile
industry. On the other hand, in response to the difficult situation of the
industry and the market opportunities, the Group will (1) enhance and
integrate the sales channels by improving store design and image in
order to boost the performance of regional stores and hence overall
results, while e-commence and hotel bedding will be the Group’s next
engines of growth to drive better results; and (2) adjust its product
mix according to the industry condition and consumers’ demand by
actively promoting cotton bedding products, which emphasises health
and comfort, and natural fibres which have low carbon emissions and
are environmental-friendly. It will also enhance the functionality and
quality of its home textile products so as to consolidate a classy brand
image and meet market needs.

BEARER

AANBRRARFEES MARARRFMEZ
IAGREBE_T—=F+_A=T—HL=FE
M EFRE-

ZE——FUR FERHITEARRASREDN
MHRE - X2 REBLEEER S ) - B E IS
RN EERNRAMISHERTE I E1TEAE
EMYRAAR IR BRIMeE R B EiEE R #
BROCEFERTERNEERKERE - AE®E
HMpBREHEEIRERMISE L ~EBEE
E-T—=ZF+_A=+—HWHMBE—FR B
BIEE WA A ARE?2 147,600,0007T * thEFH
BB 210.6% : EFI & A R #627,600,0007T ' £t
EFERA33.9% - RNEEBERHE WA RFBHEL
BIEIZRMRIEE TR CEEERERE T£5
KA Bt o

RETEEELEURKGERBERBES A&
BB T -NFERNTEBEEMEEBHEH
HYR-EEAKBERERE BRYFEMSH
IR DB RN BB R B RIB A B RATT
EWRALE - RS A HEE B RO RRHTTE
REREMEBRNTISEN: KUERLERE 2
RS R KB B FE B o B MM E K
B FHPRMTERBIBR -HHERRRN
REMUARMSHEE AEEFBMIFIOTHR: —
ERESHREMHNES T 2ERSFEEE
RAABEER  ERARGENEN  BEER
% BRIRANERER BEMERLELR
BoSBEREER —ERETEERRKRENHE
EFHK - AEEMT R KNBREFEET @O
R BERENRAGES BERMERNY
M ERE TEAERK RETEEE-
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®|E

The Group attributes its results of operation during the year under
review to the outstanding performance of all of its employees as well
as the loyal support of its business associates. | would like to take
this opportunity to express my deepest gratitude to all shareholders,
suppliers, distributors, customers and employees.

Liu Qingping
Chairman

31 March, 2014

Annual Report 2013 4 ¥

B#% AEERLBEFERNSNELES B8R
PESTHHRERBERSHFORNIIH RAA#
BltEe  ROMSERE HER HHEE &
F-BI®E!

2
BB

—E—NFE=A=+—H



Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEBNWKk DN

MARKET REVIEW

According to the “Home Textile Industry Operation in the First Three
Quarters of 2013” released by China Home Textile Association,
from January to September 2013, it was shown in the statistics of
the National Bureau of Statistics that the income from the principal
operations of 1,788 above-threshold home textile enterprises in
the PRC amounted to RMB187.34 billion, representing a year-on-
year growth of 7.6%. Data also demonstrated that in 2013, the
industry in general maintained a sustained double-digit growth and,
thus, the stable growth, particularly in terms of gross profit, of the
industry carried on. Although the economic restructuring in the PRC
extended into 2013 and some home textile enterprises were affected
by a bottleneck created by the sluggish growth in certain sectors,
the industry as a whole continued to grow and develop stably and
steadily.

The major factors causing the sluggish growth of the home textile
industry in 2013 included the followings: (i) the Chinese textile industry
was not yet capable of coping with the changes in the external
consumption markets and competition within the industry as it was still
in a development stage with small, loose and primitive consumption
scale, branding and industry structure, and requires further innovations
and reforms in terms of product design, research and development,
production management, talents training and marketing model; (i)
the PRC economy has leapt to a new development phase with a
slowed down GDP of below 8% for the year, stringent anti-corruption
and graft campaign and, thus, a drop in the share of gift and group
purchases; and (i) the domestic sales growth of certain home textile
brands were significantly hampered as the rise of new channels such
as e-commerce has gradually altered PRC consumers’ consumption
pattern and habit while badly battered the traditional sales channels
and product mix. Nonetheless, the home textile industry remained one
of the best-performing, fastest-growing and most promising sectors in
the textile industry. First of all, in the domestic market, the acceleration
of urbanisation and the rise in urban household income will lay the
solid foundation for the growth in PRC textile and garment product
sales. In 2013, with the emerging result of macro-control policies
to secure growth and restructure the economy, the PRC economy
sustained a stable development and the consumption power of the
domestic market continued to rise gradually, which are beneficial
to the overall development of the home textile industry. Secondly,
given the substantial market shares of home-moving and wedding
of over 30%, the growth in home textile sales income is linked to
the increase in sales volume of commodity properties. Therefore, the
significant rebound in PRC commodity property sales in 2013 had also
stimulated the sales of the home textile industry. Lastly, in respect of
organic growth, the PRC home textile industry is now in proliferation
with enormous potential for sales growth. At an overall average annual
growth rate of 20-30%, growth and development seem secured.
Given these favourable trends, the home textile industry grew steadily
in 2013.

™ % [0 8

BEFRRBHBERHBTEH (CE—=Fa1=
EERHOTEBTBER B R —_E—=F—=
A BERGHBHATOFBRERLTEI788K
REA FREER T EEBMAARK1873.4(E
TL B RT 6% EET FRIERMNEELED
FEEESARE — S 2ITEMEER
BTMUBmFEERRE - BE _E—=FF
B ERBARRL ROTESERRZ N
B BORMECEEBRRIAE  BINERERT
BRERNITEBREH BTTFENSSE-

TECZHF ERRHTEERRENTERR
BERAEE: —REANPERMHERENEER
BN EREER REEEMITEESHEER
EE R BT EEINDEBIRRE(CRT
ENABFREINEE TELEMKITHAE.
GEEE ATHER EHEASEHTEEBERN
B —REANKSEEATOERNE FR
FRECDPHERE —EHESWU T RIBBERFE
Mg —EEQNEBERESHEARRD
CREEETHXESHEBNER BREEE
BOEHEARNMBSELBEEE L ERNHEER
BNEMEBII TEE CEROEXPEL
R ERNEIERREREWRE - BRAHBITE
KEBERARE ROTEREBABRITERE
BRARGRE KRBEZROFITE L EH
WS HRE  BEERECERNEE ABERK
ABSER ERATBESHEBREEGATHE
BARMEEMNKBEER — T —FHELE
URBER AEBRETZEENATEBERHMER
B BEAKERFTRIERMAZTTIHEE L
NEPREE BLERRBEEDRRATED
R BN AR B BIIEE TG HBiB30%
RO BENPEERAERMBEAEREHEEDR
BREE—THHEBYE — T =FERAEMRE
HEEBERABOA - LENFETRHTTE
MIHE & HROTEEBSERMERE - F
BIR#HITHEBRENITEEDBIANKRREE
XAMBmEBERERENEGRERATHE £
R EARIFE20-30%MEE - EREFEREE KX
B EEANRRLIET T —=FRHTTE
FRIER o
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEBENWE DN

In view of the considerable influence of the macro-economy on the
home textile industry as well as the new trends and changes across
the industry, the Group had actively adjusted its operating strategy
to concentrate on production, supply, research and development,
design, branding, marketing and distribution. Through relentless
improvement in our products’ value for money, enhancing efficiency
of point-of-sale and expanding the marketing network, the Group
targeted to secure stable profitability. With new differentiation,
product-design and marketing strategies, the Group was able to
adapt to changes in product and regional business cycles by rolling
out new products such as Cupron® copper ions fibre and bamboo
fibre products. The Group has also strengthened its branding and
promotion and raised its awareness and influence in the end markets
by increasing advertising on renowned websites such as B 5 45 48
(www.hometexnet.com) and 21248 (hc360.com), as well as organising
several promotion campaigns. It made every effort to adjust its sales
channel mix and establish a competitive edge in marketing and
sales by boosting sales from e-commerce channels with the use of
specialised online group purchase platforms like & 3 (www.jd.com),
&7 R8I PR A8 (www.tc38.cc) and &K% 5 i (suning.com), developing new
businesses such as hotel linen supply.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group’s revenue was RMB2,147.6
million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 10.6%. Revenue
generated from cotton yarns sales was RMB981.4 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 0.4% and accounting for
45.7% of the total revenue. Revenue generated from bedding sales
was RMB1,166.2 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
17.6% and accounted for 54.3% of the total revenue.

As at 31 December, 2013, the Group had a total of 1,225 stores
and counters across China, representing an increase of 103 shops/
counters as compared with last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

The following table shows the numbers of stores and counters
(including those operated by distributors) and their changes during the
year under review:

UTIRBETEEFENEEENER(BED
HRKEZEEENER) 28 B RIEE:

31 December, 31 December,

2013 2012 Change

—E-=F —E—F
+=A=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H iR
Directly operated stores and counters BEEEEERERE 947 865 82
Distributors (number of stores and D (DHEECENES 262 254 8
counters operated by distributors) REE) (278) (257) 1)

The following table shows a breakdown of the numbers of distributors,
stores and counters (including those operated by distributors) by
region as at 31 December, 2013:

ATRBIEE_T—=F+_A=1+—HL
BB D MO HE  BEEREE (BEDHD
REMNEBEENER) A -

As at 31 December, 2013
BE-ZE—=f+ZA=+—HL

Stores and Directly

counters operated

operated by stores and

Region hE Distributors distributors counters

DHEREN HEEEE

pHEE 2 SBEEREE kREHE

Eastern China ERE 141 140 627

Northern China bR 31 39 167

Northeastern China Rt 26 30 103

Central China i 32 35 43

Southern China EREH R 8 7 3

Southwestern China iskezp: A= 14 13 2

Northwestern China il hz] = 10 14 2

Total: Bt 262 278 947
Notes: Kt

Eastern China: Shandong, Jiangsu, Anhui, Zhejiang, Fujian, Jiangxi, Shanghai
Northern China: Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei, Shanxi, Inner Mongolia

Northeastern China: Heilongjiang, Jilin, Liaoning

Central China: Henan, Hubei, Hunan

Southern China: Guangdong, Guangxi, Hainan

Southwestern China: Sichuan, Yunnan, Guizhou, Tibet, Chongging
Northwestern China: Ningxia, Xinjiang, Qinghai, Shaanxi, Gansu

12 China Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited /@ B %=
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEBENWE DN

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

In light of the characteristics of the home textile industry, the Group
follows a strategy to pursue product innovation and development and
infiltrate into every product, regional and target customer markets.
On one hand, it catered for the high-end market featuring urban
consumers who are highly conscious of the functions and health
aspect of home textiles by introducing health products such as
electroconductive fibre, cationic dyed polyester and high-strength
PVA products, thereby increasing the proportion of middle- and high-
end products with high technology input and high added value. On
the other hand, the Group also targeted at urban price-savvy white-
collar and middle-class consumers by developing and producing pure-
cotton jacquard and printed products series with premium value for
money. Through successful development of different new products to
be marketed in turn in different regions, the Group was able to cope
with market changes, and had boosted market sales and achieved
magnificent results of operation.

STRENGTHENING SALES CHANNELS

The Group always emphasises the benefit of building a wide and
stable sales network. It has not only striven to improve its profitability
by increasing the efficiency of its point-of sale, but also enhanced
its competitiveness through tightening its control over them. It has
established directly-operated flagship stores in the commercial centres
of large cities in order to promote its brand among the major cities,
enhance the appeal and influence of the brand and stimulate regional
sales. Furthermore, it has accelerated market expansion and enlarged
its market share by inviting franchisees to establish franchised store
or counters. In addition, it has exemplified the brand’s diversity and
catered for every market segment by establishing chain supermarket
sales with its supermarket-oriented product line, “I & Co”. Moreover,
it has stepped up the development of e-commerce so as to extend
its sales channels and adapt to new home textile sales pattern. Last
but not least, it has entered into specialised market segments such
as hotel linen supply, government tenders and gift products. In this
respect, the Group has achieved certain breakthroughs by entering
into cooperation agreements with various major high-end hotel chains,
participating in government tenders and increasing the sales of gift
products.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue decreased by 10.6% to RMB2,147.6 milion for the year
ended 31 December, 2013 from RMB2,401.0 million for the year
ended 31 December, 2012 due to:

o Revenue in the bedding products segment decreased by
17.6% to RMB1,166.2 million for the year ended 31 December,
2013 from RMB1,415.5 million for the year ended 31
December, 2012. Revenue in the sales of branded bedding
products dropped 16.4% to RMB1,162.7 million for the year
ended 31 December, 2013 from RMB1,391.6 million for the
year ended 31 December, 2012, mainly due to the sluggish
growth of the home textile industry in 2013.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the revenue by
products:

Bt %5 ] B8

WamaEE_ZT——F+_A=+—8L*F
E 2 AR 2 401,000,0007C 58 2 10.6% 2 H &
TE—ZHE+ - AZ+-BLEEZARYE
2,147,600,0007C * RELAT :

. KRoHzRFEEBEE-_ET——F+ -4
=+—HIEFE 2 AR®1,415,500,000
TRP176%EBE T —=F+= A
=t+—HIEFE 2 AR®1,166,200,000
T -mBERABEECKEHEBEEF
——FE+ A=+ —HIFEZARE
1,391,600,0007 ) 216 4% EBHE - F
— =+ - A=+—-BIFEZARYE
1,162,700,000t T ERA KT —=F
RGTTHEBERINEFTE

TREREMS D 2 WHAHA:

For the year ended 31 December,

BET-A=1t-HL%EE

2013 Revenue

2012 Revenue

“E-=FKH BN
(RMB’000) (% to total) (RMB’'000) (% to total)
(AE¥ (1545 (AR# (b5
Fr) BAK) Fr) BRft)
Bedding Products R
Branded products mEE R 1,162,743 54.1 1,391,635 58.0
OEM B 3,423 0.2 23,896 1.0
Sub-total NaF 1,166,166 54.3 1,415,531 59.0
Cotton Yarns B
Product category ERER Yarn Count ¥
Coarse-count yarns i 18 or below 18X AT 1,359 0.1 7,934 0.3
Medium-count yarns Ry 19 up to 28 19% £28% 33,837 1.6 16,798 0.7
Fine-count yarns |y 29 up to 60 29% £60% 205,547 9.5 257,242 10.7
High-count yarns =5 61 or above 61 A £ 740,709 345 703,544 29.3
Sub-total NE 981,452 45.7 985,518 410
Total st 2,147,618 100.0 2,401,049 100.0
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The average realised selling price and gross profit margin of branded mERmZ FHEREERENEHINMAT
bedding products are set out below:

For the year ended 31 December,

BE+T-A=t-BLEE

2013 2012

—E-=F§ —E——F
Gross Average Gross Average
profit realized profit realized
margin selling price margin selling price
ERZ EREE EHE ERER
(RMB per (RMB per
(%) piece/set) (%) plece/set)
(G# & (&t &
(%) AR¥T) (%) AEET)
Branded bedding products IR & 41.8 450 57.0 450

The average realised selling price and gross profit margin of cotton Bz FPHEREBREMEHIMT

yarns is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December,

BEt-A=t-HLEE

2013 2012

—E-=F Tl
Gross Average Gross Average
profit realised profit realized
margin  selling price margin selling price
FHURR FHER
EHl= &€ ERx i
(RMB (RMB
(%) per tonne) (%) per tonne)
(&0 (&
(%) AR¥T) (%) ARET)

Product category ERER Yarn count X&

Coarse-count yamns x4 18 or below 18X AT 10.2 15,204 96 15,703
Medium-count yarns R4 19 up to 28 19% 2283 12.4 17,748 10.2 19,842
Fine-count yamns RisE 29 up to 60 29% 603 12.2 22,162 125 22,823
High-count yarns BXY 61 or above GBI A L 15.3 46,073 16.7 43,122
Segment weighted average 7 2P & F19 145 35,888 154 34,056
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COST STRUCTURE

The following sets forth a breakdown of the cost structure:

Other Production
Overheads
HhEERS

8.69
Direct Labor W

HEST
6.6%

Fuel and Utilities

Direct Labor
BEEST

Fuel and Utilities

AR 18
AT 851 A AN 2R B B AR -

Other Production
Overheads
EfAERS
6.3%

6.8%

BREE A A RS BB A RS
e 5.8%
Raw Cotton Raw Cotton
2013 R i 2012 JR#%
—®_=s& 35.8% —= 40.4%
Fabnc§////// Fabﬁc§//////
ik Tkt
43.2% 40.7%

Raw material costs accounted for 79.0% of the total cost of sales for
the year ended 31 December, 2013, similar to that of year ended 31
December, 2012.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Gross profit decreased by 33.9% to RMB627.6 million for the year
ended 31 December, 2013 from RMB949.5 million for the year ended
31 December, 2012. Overall gross profit margin for the year ended 31
December, 2013 decreased to 29.2% from 39.5% for the year ended
31 December, 2012 due primarily to the decrease in gross profit of the
Group’s bedding products segment.

Gross profit of the Group’s bedding product segment decreased by
39.2% to RMB485.2 million for the year ended 31 December, 2013
from RMB797.5 million for the year ended 31 December, 2012. Gross
profit margin of the Group’s bedding product segment decreased to
41.6% for the year ended 31 December, 2013 from 56.3% for the
year ended 31 December, 2012 due primarily to the continuous rise in
production costs.
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OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Other gains and losses recorded a loss of RMB30.4 million for the year
ended 31 December, 2013 and RMB9.8 million for the year ended
31 December, 2012. The losses mainly comprised of compensation
recognised in respect of default on sales contract of RMB18.2
million, impairment loss recognised in respect of trade receivables of
RMB8.3 million, impairment loss recognised in respect of prepayments
of RMB1.4 million and impairment loss recognised in respect of
inventories of RMB3.7 million, while the effects of which were partially
offset by a gain on disposal of scrap materials of RMB1.8 million
during the year.

DISTRIBUTION AND SELLING EXPENSES

Distribution and selling expenses comprise mainly of freight, import/
export declaration and delivery charges, sales commission and
wages paid to sales staff, expenses related to marketing and
promotion such as advertisements and exhibitions, retail stores and
counters running and renovation expenses, urban maintenance and
construction levy and educational surcharge. Distribution and selling
expenses decreased by 20.2% to RMB109.3 million for the year
ended 31 December, 2013 as compared with RMB136.9 million in
last year. Advertising and marketing expenses recognised during
the year amounted to RMB52.3 million; and urban maintenance and
construction levy and educational surcharge amounted to RMB28.1
million; total representing 6.9% of the Group’s revenue in the sales of
bedding products and 3.7% of the Group’s total revenue for the year
ended 31 December, 2013; renovation costs and running expenses
for our directly-operated retail stores and counters and subsidies for
newly-opened franchised stores recognised amounted to RMB16.5
million which accounted for 15.1% of the distribution and selling
expenses.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs increased by 125.7% to RMB41.3 million for the year
ended 31 December, 2013 from RMB18.3 million in last year. The
increase was mainly due to the rise in bank interest expenses and the
interest incurred by the obligations under finance lease.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense decreased by 48.0% to RMB123.6 million for
the year ended 31 December, 2013 from RMB237.7 million for the
year ended 31 December, 2012. The decrease was mainly due to
a decrease in the taxable income for the year ended 31 December,
2018.
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WORKING CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth selected operating efficiency ratios for
the Group:

LELETEHE

TRENAEB 2 LB ELEW AL E:

For the For the

year ended year ended

31 December, 31 December,

2013 2012

BZE HE

—E—-=F —E——%F

+T=ZHA=+-—H +=—A=+—H

IEFE IFFE

Trade receivables turnover (days)” FEUBR AR (H) @ 79 76

Trade payables turnover (days)? FERERESER (H)@ 17 22

Inventory turnover (days)® GFEREER (/)0 19 26
Notes: iz

(1)  Trade receivables turnover is calculated based on the average of the
beginning and ending balance of trade receivables for a given year,
divided by revenue during the given year and multiplied by 365 days.

(2) Trade payables turnover is calculated based on the average of the
beginning and ending balance of trade payables for a given year divided
by cost of sales during the given year and multiplied by 365 days.

(8) Inventory turnover is calculated based on the average of the beginning
and ending balance of inventory, net of impairment, for a given year,
divided by cost of sales during the given year and multiplied by 365 days.

Average trade receivable turnover increased to 79 days for the
year ended 31 December, 2013 from 76 days for the year ended
31 December, 2012, which was primarily due to the increase in
proportion of sales to the Group’s bedding products distributors to
which the Group granted longer credit periods.

Average trade payables turnover and average inventory turnover
decreased to 17 days and 19 days respectively for the year ended
31 December, 2013 from 22 days and 26 days for the year ended 31
December, 2012, which was primarily due to the reduction in inventory
level maintained at year end date.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The following table sets forth liquidity and capital adequacy ratios for
the years:

RBEESREXER
TREIATFEZRDESREATRRL X

For the For the

year ended year ended

31 December, 31 December,

2013 2012

BZE HE

—E—=fF —E——F

+=RA=+—H +=—A=+—H

LHFEE IEFE

(Restateq)

(45 &E2))

Gearing” BEARBREY 21.6% 11.4%

Debt-to-equity? BIRE R 32.9% 16.5%

Current ratio B =& 3.3 timesfZ 2.8 timesf&
Notes: H1:E -

(1) Calculated as the total debts for the year, divided by total assets for the (1) UFERNEBEEERFENEEBERIA100%:THE

year and multiplied by 100%. Debts are defined to include current and
non-current borrowings.

2 Calculated as the total debts for the year, divided by the equity for the
year and multiplied by 100%. Debts are defined to include current and
non-current borrowings.

The gearing ratio and the debt-to-equity ratio increased to 21.6%
and 32.9% respectively for the year ended 31 December, 2013
from 11.4% and 16.5% for the year ended 31 December, 2012. The
increases in the gearing ratio and debt-to-equity ratio were principally
due to the increase in bank borrowings and leasing by the Group of
certain of its manufacturing equipment under finance lease during the
year.
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CASH FLOW BERE
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December, 31 December,
2013 2012
BZE HE
—E—-=F —E——%F
+=ZHA=+-—H +=—A=+—H
HEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T AR#TF T
(Restated)
(45 E31)
Net cash generated from operating activities KEFHEECH ST 321,514 335,730
Net cash used in investing activities BEEHEBR 2R )FE (413,069) (20,313)
Net cash generated from financing activities BEEBEA 2R FE 328,740 47,963
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December RT+ZA=+—HZHEK
ReEEY 1,443,090 1,205,905

Net cash generated from operating activities decreased to RMB321.5
million for the year ended 31 December, 2013 from RMB335.7 million
for the year ended 31 December, 2012, due to the following:

— operating cash flows before movements in working capital of
RMB535.0 million;

— a decrease in cash resulting from changes in working capital
of RMB26.9 million, including a decrease in trade and other
receivables and prepayment of RMB46.3 million, a decrease in
inventories level of RMB11.1 million and a decrease in trade and
other payables and accruals of RMB84.3 million;

—  PRC enterprise income tax and withholding tax on dividend paid
of RMB186.6 million.

Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended 31 December,
2013 was RMB413.1 million mainly due to the advances to third
parties of RMB480.1 million and the net decrease in pledged bank
deposits of RMB60.6 million.

Net cash generated from financing activities for the year ended
31 December, 2013 was RMB328.7 million, including primarily the
procurement of finance lease of RMB340.0 million, repayment of
finance lease of RMB30.0 million dividend payments of RMB52.0
million, interest payment of RMB41.3 million, and the increase in bank
borrowings of RMB112.0 million.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the assets pledged as at 31 December, 2013 are set out in
note 34.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December,
20183 (2012: nil).

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The business operations of the Group’s subsidiaries were conducted
mainly in the PRC with revenues and expenses of the Group’s
subsidiaries denominated in RMB. Some of the Group’s cash and
bank deposits, including proceeds from the Group’s initial public
offering, were denominated in Hong Kong Dollars or US Dollars. Any
significant exchange rate fluctuations of Hong Kong Dollars or US
Dollars against each entity’s respective functional currency may have a
financial impact to the Group.

As at 31 December, 2013, the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) considered the Group’s foreign exchange risk to be
insignificant. During the year, the Group did not use any financial
instruments for hedging purposes.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December, 2013, the Group had a workforce of
approximately 5,163 employees (2012: 5,384). Staff costs for the year
ended 31 December, 2013 (including Directors’ remuneration in the
form of salaries and other allowances) were RMB124.4 million (2012:
RMB120.7 million).

The remuneration of the employees of the Group includes salaries,
bonuses and other fringe benefits. The Group has different rates of
remuneration for different employees to be determined based on their
performance, experience, position and other factors in compliance
with the relevant PRC laws and regulations.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES
Branding and promotion

The Group will implement its systematic branding strategy by leaps
and bounds in order to bolster its brand promotion and safeguard
and enhance brand image. The diversified marketing means will
utilise multiple media such as advertising on online media, employing
hoardings on expressways, roads and bridges as well as print
advertisements on municipal buses and national railways. These
methods will enhance the exposure and awareness of the brand. It will
also regularly participate in every kind of home textile exhibitions and
organise product launch events so as to demonstrate Taifaeng’s home
textile brands and products in multiple perspectives and ways.

Product research and development and technological
innovation

The positioning of the Group’s products in the market will be gradually
perfected so as to satisfy diversified consumers’ requirements and
their pursuit of quality life. It will carry on its differentiation strategy
to enlarge the development of new functional products such as
copper ions, bamboo and Tencel jacquard products. Cashmere and
wool series, cotton polyester imitation wool series, environmental-
friendly and anti-bacterial health series and water-absorbing and
quick-drying comfort series will be promoted, and the application and
development of other functional fibres will be strengthened in order to
embrace more functions such as anti-bacterial, deodorising, antistatic,
breathable, temperature control, water-proofing, health and easy-care
properties. The Group will leverage on its research and development
capability and outstanding product mix to realise technical upgrades
and enhance the technology of its products, and in turn enlarge
their sales. The focus will be to enrich the home textile product mix
by fusing new spinning and weaving technology into the design and
development of home textiles. To achieve such goal, the Group will
invest heavily in technical upgrades, production of diversified multi-
component fibres and improvement in spinning technique in order to
enhance the products’ technology level and added-value.
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Extension of distribution channels

The Group will steadily expand its sales channels to establish a multi-
layered and comprehensive brand marketing network. The operating
strategy of this network will concentrate on improving the operation
efficiency of the directly-operated stores while complementing them
with high-end flagship stores, point-of-sale at large supermarkets
and hypermarkets and e-commerce channels. It will also persist in
developing multiple brands and building up their respective market
advantage in order to realise a comprehensive marketing system.
Among these brands, “Taifeng” will be marketed in middle— and high-
end markets and target at middle-class and white-collar consumers
in cities, while “I & Co” will aim at lower-income groups in the middle—
and low-end markets. “Kangshow”, on the other hand, will focus
on offering fashionable home textile products to trend-sensitive
consumers and online customers. The Group will also integrate the
resources of these channels in order to tighten effective control over
the point-of-sale while renovating and upgrading them by improving
their interior design, stock management and display. The reciprocal
cooperative marketing model between the Group and its partners
will also be upheld. Together these measures will establish a more
competitive marketing system which is expected to bolster the
channels.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Qingping, aged 60, was appointed as the Chairman of the
Board and an executive Director of the Company on 21 May 2009.
Mr. Liu is responsible for strategic planning, business development
and overall management of the Group. Mr. Liu has more than 20
years of experience in the textile industry. Mr. Liu has been awarded
numerous recognitions and honours in the past. In 1995, he was
awarded “Outstanding Quality Manager for Textile Industry of the
Shandong Province (IR E#BEREFTEEEEITIEE)” by
Textile Industry Bureau of Shandong Province (LI & 474 T ¥ 52)
and Association of Quality Management Textile Industry of Shandong
Province (LR #4THEEEIEHE ) . In 2003, he was recognized as a
Model Worker of Shandong Province by the Shandong Province ( 115
B L EEE) by the People’s Government of Shandong Province ( 1L
B ARBAT) . In 2004, he was awarded (i) “Entrepreneur with Good
Faith of Shandong Province (LU & FE1 %% ) ” by The Committee
for Credit Rating of Shandong Province and Shandong Province Credit
Rating Company (LLEEZEFAREZEeRILELEEETRER
Al) and (i) Award for Outstanding Entrepreneurs of Textile Industry
of Shandong Province ( LI ER 474 > 2 R8I ¥ 82) by Office of Textile
Industry of Shandong Province (LU & ## T ¥ A=) and The
Association of Textile Enterprises Management of Shandong Province
(ILEMEPEEIERE) . In 2005, he was awarded “Outstanding
|deological and Political (Enterprise Culture) Operator in Textile Industry
of Shandong Province (ILR&A##1THES BEBUR - (PEXLER
I &%)’ by Office of Textile Industry of Shandong Province ( [LIE &
EE T3 =) and Political Research Committee of Textile Workers
of Shandong Province (LI & 4548 THME) . In 2006, he was
awarded (i) “50 People Promoting the Globalization of PRC Brands
in 2006 (2006 &) F B k2 B B {£50A ) 7 by PRC Organization
Committee of the 14th World Productivity Congress ( & + P f& t
REENRePHMAL4ZEZES) and (i) “Outstanding Operator and
Manager of Shandong Province (lUIREEFKLLEEE)" by
Committee for Economic and Trade of Shandong Province ( LU 3R & 48
EZESHZE ). In 2007, he was recognised () “An Excellent Leading
Individual in Outstanding Quality Control of the Textile Industry in the
PRC(ZEI#MITH*EFEEEE/MAEEEMEEE) " by China
National Textile and Apparel Council ( 7 B #7545 T %1% 2 ) and China
Trade Union of Financial and Commercial Workers, Light Industry and
Textile Workers, Tobacco Industry Workers (R B8 Z & 4hEE T & )
and (i) “Model Worker in Business Sector in Countrywide ( % B 7 7%
R ENIESE) " by Ministry of Personnel of the People’s Republic of
China (fF#E AR £ E A FE6) and the Ministry of Commerce of the
People’s Republic of China (2 A R £ FBIE#E6) . In 2010, he
was awarded “Award for Outstanding Entrepreneurs of Textile Industry
of Shandong Province (LU R # 4% 2 K A2 22) ” by The Association
of Textile Industry of Shandong Province (1L FE & 47 4% T ¥ )
and The Association of Textile Enterprises Management of Shandong
Province (U4 EEIEHE) . In 2011, he was awarded “Green
Campaign, 2011 Top 10 Leading Figures of the PRC Economy ( 4k
g e2011H HEEEF AY)” by China Economic Development
Forum Committee (P EI& EERE#HIBZLZEE) . In 2012, he was
named as an “Outstanding Patent Inventor of Laiwu City (#&# T EF
=HIZERF A ) " by the People’s Government of Laiwu City (&M AR
BFF) . Mr. Liu is a senior economist. He obtained a doctorate degree
in business administration from American Liberty University in 2005.
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Mr. Li Dengxiang, aged 53, was appointed as the Vice-chairman of
the Board and an executive Director of the Company on 18 November
2009. Mr. Li has over 30 years of experience in the textile industry and
is responsible for overseeing the production, quality and operation
management of the Group. Mr. Li obtained various recognitions
and awards in the past. He was awarded “Golden Bridge Prize of
Technology market of Shandong Province (LU & MM E R B
#%) ” by Golden Bridge Prize Award Committee of Shandong Province
(LRERMTERXESBREHZEE)in 2005 and 2007. In
2007, he was also recognized as an “Outstanding Young to Middle
Age Technology Worker of the Textile Industry in the PRC ( & Bl 847
BITXEEFEPEFRHEIIEE) " by China Textile Engineering Society
(FPE## TI2E2) . Mr. Li is an senior engineer. He obtained a
professional certificate in business administration from the Shandong
Industrial University (now merged as Shandong University) in 1998 and
a doctorate degree in business administration from American Liberty
University in 2005.

Ms. Qi Tongli, aged 51, was appointed an executive Director
of the Company on 21 May 2009 and is responsible for capital
operation management of the Group. Ms. Qi has more than 20 years
of experience in the textile industry. She was awarded “Scientific
Technology Advancement Award” (FlE2 5 fiTi 25 48) in 1998 and
2000 by The Assessment Committee for Scientific Technology
Advancement Award of Shandong Province (LI 58 % %} £ 5 47 #
H T EZLZ B @) and The Assessment Committee for Scientific
Technology Advancement Award of Laiwu City ( K% fl 22 5 fi
H ST EE B € ) respectively. In 2003, she was awarded “Scientific
Technology Award of Shandong Province ”( Il 5 & &} 2 £ fiy £8)
by The Assessment Committee for Scientific Technology Award of
Shandong Province (LU R AR EH T RFTEZLZE ). She was
recognized as a “Model Outstanding Female Worker and Contribution
of Shandong Province (IU A LB TENIZEZEK)” and was
awarded “Award for Improvement of Living Standard in Shandong
Province (B RELE L E)HEE ) " in 2007 by the General Labour Union
of Shandong Province (L& T =) . Ms. Qi is a senior engineer.
She obtained a certificate in textile industry from Jinan School of
Textile Industry, a certificate in business administration from the
Shandong Industrial University (now merged as Shandong University)
in 1998 and a doctorate degree in business administration from
American Liberty University in 2005.

Mr. Zou Shengzhong, aged 48, was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on 25 September 2013 and was
appointed as an executive Director of the Company on 18 November
2009. Mr. Zou has more than 20 years of experience in the textile
industry and is responsible for overseeing the sales, production
and full operation management of the Group. Mr. Zou is a senior
engineer. He graduated from Changwei School of Textile Industry in
1983 and he obtained a certificate in electricity engineering from the
Shandong TV University in 1987 and a doctorate degree in business
administration from American Liberty University in 2005.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kin Sang, aged 62, is currently the sole proprietor of
Messrs. Peter K.S. Chan & Co., Solicitors and Notaries. He was
appointed an independent non-executive Director of the Company on
18 November 2009. He has been a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong
since 1982. He was admitted as a Notary Public in 1997 and as a
China-appointed Attesting Officer in 2000. He is currently a Fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Chan graduated from the
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Laws degree in 1979.
Mr. Chan is also a director of the following public listed companies:

BYFYTES

BREEAE KL 6258 B BRI ERETT (A
RRABANZBEREE BN _TZNF+—
AT NBEZERARRRBILIFNTEE -KE
—HAN_FERBFENRRM - BN —NNLF
BERBAER IR _ZZZFURTEETIR
BN BARBSBELEERREFRER RELAR
—NMENFEXRBERE BERBELEN-
REAEEMEETIN ET AR ZES:

Listed Company Stock Code Place of Listing Role

EH AR % 12 X 5% Eivith B3

Pan Hong Property Group Limited P36 Singapore Non-executive Director

NEMEESEBR AR N3 FHTES

Luxking Group Holdings Limited L34 Singapore Independent Non-executive Director

NEEEERBR AR N3 BIMIERITES

Combest Holdings Limited 8190 Hong Kong Non-executive Director

BREERBRAR E FHTES

China Precious Metal Resources 1194 Hong Kong Independent Non-executive Director
Holdings Co., Limited

PEHECEERERERDF BB BYUERITES

Tianjin TEDA Biomedical 8189 Hong Kong Independent Non-executive Director
Engineering Co., Ltd.

REREEMBEIEROH AR AR e BYUERITES

For the past 3 years, Mr. Chan also held directorships in the following
Hong Kong listed companies: (a) United Pacific Industries Limited
(Stock Code: 176); (b) Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
767); (c) Zhongda International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 909);
(d) Mayer Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1116) and (e) Ming Kei
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8239) and in the following Singapore
listed company: (a) People’s Food Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
P05).

RBE=F RAELNEEETIEFELTRA
ZEE: QBATEARQRA (BMHK5E:176)
PR FFEXZBRBR DA (BRHRE:767)
©F ABEBRERABR A E (AR5 :909) : (d)
XEERBRAF (RO 1116) ReFAEE
IR R AR (RO RER:8239) : I BHEETFIH
MEETRRZEE: @QARRBIERAR AR
(Bt K55 : PO5) o
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Mr. Li Yuchun, aged 66, is a retired senior bank official. Mr. Li is an
economist and has more than 20 years of experience in the banking
industry and financial management. He has been an independent
director of Shandong Inspur Software Co. Ltd (Stock Code: SHA
600756), a company listed in the Shanghai Stock Exchange, for
two consecutive years. Mr. Li was appointed an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 18 November 2009. He
graduated from People’s Liberation Army School of Sailors Politics
(FEIARBRESEBEZR)in professional political works in
1986.

Mr. Dai Shunlin, aged 71, is a deputy director of China Institute of
Textile Planning and a retired senior engineer. He was appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 18 November
2009. Mr. Dai has more than 40 years in the textile industry. He
graduated from the textile engineering department of Wuxi School
of Light Industry with a certificate in professional machine knitting in
1966.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Huang Qige, aged 45, joined the Group in 2001 and is currently
the secretary to the Board of Directors of Shandong Taifeng Textile
Co., Ltd (“Shandong Taifeng”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group. Mr. Huang obtained a certificate in physics from Shandong
Mineral College (LR EZE£0T) in 1989, and a doctoral degree in
business administration from American Liberty University in 2005. In
2008, he finished his studies of accountancy with Shandong School of
Economics. He has more than 8 years of experience as secretary to
the Board of directors.

Mr. Zou Shengcheng, aged 45, joined the Group in 2003. He has
more than 16 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr. Zou is the
vice general manager of Shandong Taifeng and is responsible for the
products development and technology of the Group. He graduated
from Shandong School of Textile Industry with a bachelor’s degree in
textile engineering in 1992.
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Mr. Geng Zhensheng, aged 48, joined the Group in 2001. He has
more than 20 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr. Geng is
the vice general manager of Shandong Taifeng and is responsible
for the production of the Group. He completed secondary school
education in Laiwu City in 1982.

Mr. Liu Bingxue, aged 44, joined the Group in 2001. He was the
financial manager and assistant to general manager of the Group.
In August 2013, he was appointed deputy general manager of the
Group and is responsible for financial affairs. He obtained a certificate
in accountancy from the Shandong Agricultural College (now Qingdao
Agricultural University) in 1995 and is an intermediate accountant
in China. In 2005, he was accredited as &M i @5t T e
(Advanced Accountant in Laiwu) by the Finance Bureau of Dongguan,
the Propaganda Department of the Chinese Communist Party of
Laiwu City and Laiwu City General Chamber of Commerce.

Mr. Wang Fenggui, aged 50, joined the Group in 2010. He is the
manager of the Group’s home textiles sales division and is responsible
for the sales of home textiles. He was appointed deputy general
manager of Shandong Taifeng on 14 August 2013 and is in charge of
the production and sales of home textiles. He obtained a certificate in
automation from J% 9 47 £ 22 4% (Jinan School of Textiles) (now & ™ T
FEEL 2 T 2B (Jinan Engineering Vocational Technical College)) in
1982 and is a senior engineer.

Mr. Pang Wai Hong, aged 49, is the the company secretary of
the Company. He is responsible for the statutory compliance and
corporate governance matters of the Company. Mr. Pang is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He holds a
Master of Science (Finance) from the National University of Ireland and
a Master of Lighting degree from Queensland University of Technology.
Mr. Pang has more than 20 years of financial and auditing experience.
Prior to joining the Group in 2009, he was the chief financial officer
and company secretary of People’s Food Holdings Limited (stock
code: P05), a company listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange.
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The Board is pleased to present this annual report, together with
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December, 2013.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 21 May, 2009 under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. In preparation for the listing of
the Shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
(the “Stock Exchange”), the Group underwent a series of corporate
reorganisation procedures and the Company became the holding
company of the Group since 18 August, 2009.

Details of the reorganisation were set out in the paragraph headed
“Reorganisation” on page 4 to 5 of Appendix VIl (Statutory and
General Information) in the prospectus of the Company dated 31 May,
2010 (the “Prospectus”).

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 11 June, 2010 (the “Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and distribution
of quality cotton yarns and bedding products in China. The principal
activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are
set out in note 1 and 41 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December, 2013
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 55 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members will be closed from 18 June, 2014 to 20
June, 2014, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the annual general meeting to be held on 20 June, 2014,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on 17 June, 2014.

Annual Report 2013 4 ¥

ESEMAREAFR ERAKEEE-_T—=
Ft-A=TRULFREZEEZMBHRE-

NAEH

ARRAR_ZEENFRAA-T—HAREFEES
REVERHASHBEMN L RERRER AT &
EEBINEEMERXZAERRAT ([BRA])
IRET AKEETTERARNEARERF WA
ARRB-ZETNAFNATNBERSAEE &

NG

BEEFABHRARANR - —ZFHEA=+T—H
TEZHARER ([BRER])MEL OXER—
RER) FA4E5R [EHE] — K-

FRABRGHER-_ZB—FFXA+—H(IEWAH
Hi )RR PTER L ©

FEXRHK

ARRZEBERBRBREER AKEZETER
BRETERSEERY IR RRERDH AN
REAMBAR 2 TBZEXBREMAITERNAFR
AR BRRMEI R4 -

RERDIK

ARBRE-T-=F+-A=+—HILFEZ
LERA KT BESE 2 GABRREMEER
W

EFETERRERE_T—=F+A=+—
B FEERRE -

EERERMBFERE

ARRBR_E—NFAA+TNBAE_ZT—NF
ANAZ+HH (BEMABREERN) EEHERG B
FELEFE - AFAERERBER - —NFER
AZ+HROTZREAFRSYRE LRE FT
BBRPXHEREEREETENR T —NF X
A+tBTFOE=t+HoZxEARRRDBEE
REDBTABHELERAR It AEEE
FERAERISIHRAMAL7IEI712-1716F -

29



Directors’ Report

EEEHS

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five years are set out on page 5 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December, 2013, sales to the Group’s five
largest customers and the largest customer accounted for 62.0% and
17.2% respectively of the Group’s total turnover for the year.

For the year ended 31 December, 2013, the Group’s purchases
attributable to the five largest suppliers and the largest supplier
accounted for 74.9% and 29.7% respectively of the Group’s total
purchases for the year.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
who, which to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in the five largest
suppliers or customers.

In addition to the credit risk assessment as disclosed in the note 39b
to the consolidated financial statements, the Group had re-assessed
the business relationship with customers carrying overdue balances. In
addition, the Group had closely monitored the subsequent settlement
of aforesaid overdue balances, and approximately 93% of the year
end trade receivables which are past due but not impaired was settled
by customers mainly in cash. For the remaining overdue balances,
the Group adheres to its current credit policy and takes appropriate
internal follow up actions for the collections of longer and aged
receivable balances.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.

LISTING OF THE SHARES AND SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

The shares of the Company have been successfully listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange since 11 June, 2010. The total number
of shares of the Company in issue upon listing was 1,000,000,000
shares.

Details of the movements during the year in the issued share capital
of the Company are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Since the Listing Date, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements during the year in the reserves of the Group
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
58 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, all reserves
(including share premium and retained earnings) of the Company may
be applied for payment of distributions or dividends to shareholders
provided that immediately following the date on which the distribution
or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. At 31
December, 2013, distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB1,734,509,000.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December,
2013 are set out in notes 25 to 27 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Details of the commitments and contingent liabilities of the Group are
set out in note 35 and 37 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Group had no significant events after the balance sheet date.
DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report
are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Qingping (appointed on 21 May 2009)

Mr. Li Dengxiang (appointed on 18 November 2009)

Ms. Qi Tongli (appointed on 21 May 2009)

Mr. Liu Chunwei (appointed on 18 November 2009 and

resigned on 25 September 2013)

Mr. Zou Shengzhong (appointed on 18 November 2009)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Kin Sang (appointed on 18 November 2009)

Mr. Li Yuchun (appointed on 18 November 2009)

Mr. Dai Shunlin (appointed on 18 November 2009)

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.
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Each of the Executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of three years commencing from the Listing Date, subject to
termination by either party giving the other not less than 3 months’
prior written notice or such shorter period as both parties may agree.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, one-
third of the Directors or, if the number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third, will
retire from office by rotation and every Directors shall be subject to
retirement at an Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) at least once every
three years. The Directors to retire every year will be those who have
been longest in office since their last re-election or appointment.
Accordingly, Ms. Qi Tongli, Mr. Li Yuchun and Mr. Dai Shunlin shall
retire by rotation at the AGM. All the retiring Directors are eligible for
re-election.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of the Directors is determined by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to the duties, responsibilities, performance
of the Directors and the results of the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

The emoluments paid to the senior management (excluding the
Directors) during the year ended 31 December, 2013 were within the
following bands:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December, 2013 and the date of this annual report, the
interests and short positions of the Directors and the Chief Executive
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules are as follows:

Long Position

(a) Long position - Interests in the Company

EERTHABRERTARG - HERD R
BECEBERKR

R-E—Z=ZF+_A=Z=+—HRAFHREH K
PREIBEERITREAHN AR REEEEE (F
EREBEFRBEGEL ([FHFREEEKED])EXV
) 2B AR RESF T A BN IRIEE
F KRB GPIFEI5216B T 7 2 Bl iR
ETTRBIM R+ FTE E BT AETHETESR
SRR ([REFA) g ARAE KT
ZHRBRARWMT

wRE
(a) HE-RELAZELZE

Percentage of
the issued

Number of share capital of

Name of director Capacity ordinary shares the Company

HARDFE BT

ESHE &4 ZBEREE BRAB 7L

Mr. Liu Qingping (7) Interest in controlled corporations 555,000,000 55.50%
208 TR H(1) MNEEGNEE 2 s

Beneficial owner 16,234,000 1.62%

BEamlEAA

(1) Mr. Liu Qingping is deemed to be indirectly interested in
555,000,000 Shares, ie. 565.5% of the issued capital of the
Company, through his direct interests in Harvest Sun Enterprises
Limited and Fu Sun Development Limited under the SFO.
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(b) Long position - Interests in an associated corporation

(b) HE-REHZEzEzE

Approximate
percentage of

holding of

the total share

capital of

Type the associated

Name of director Associated corporation of interests corporation

BHERBEER

N

EEpnE L RERER BHRBED L

Mr. Li Dengxiang Harvest Sun Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner 14.60%
FEFRE EREEARAQA] BEnEEA

Mr. Liu Chunwei Harvest Sun Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner 8.60%
Blmmrst ERERARDA EREEA

Ms. Qi Tongli Harvest Sun Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner 13.20%
TRBER L ERTEERAA EnlEAA

Mr. Zou Shengzhong Harvest Sun Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner 7.50%

BEBTELE

BRTEBRAE

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual
report, none of the Directors and Chief Executive of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the

Model Code.

BamlAA

B EXFBEEIN RAFRAM K
REAEZERTRARBERARRRE
HEOEE (&R B 5 LB HRGIEXV
BB 2 Btn - ARBER Y R A
FCERAMRIE 78 75 I B & 15 0 5535215 A
THEZELM IREFEETRIZEM
SARRBI MR ERmIIXE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December, 2013, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the following person (other than a Director and Chief Executive of
the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares,

TERRRKRG HERORES2ERZR
RE

RIE—=F+_A=1t—H BEZ=MRHM AT
AL (FEBEARDEERITBRAR) RARTZ
Bt HERORESTHEERERZ MR K

underlying shares and debentures of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register of

interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336

BIEXVEBE2 R EID B2 R T AR AN QR HFE -
AL SRR AR RIIRIE FE 5 K B E &I 533615 8
%ﬁﬁZ%Aﬂﬂﬁz% SSOKBIT

of the SFO:
Percentage of
the issued share
Number of capital of
Name Capacity ordinary shares the Company
HERLDTE BT
wE LR 54 ZERHE AT DL
Harvest Sun Enterprises Limited (7) Registered and beneficial owner, 555,000,000 55.50%
benefioiary of a trust
ERMPEARRRT) BLMEREEA EEXEA
Fu Sun Development Limited (2) Reglstered and beneficial owner 75,000,000 @589
EEERARARG BUREREBA
Mr. Liu Qingping (3) Interest in controlled corporation and 571,234,000 57.12%
beneficial owner
BIEFEEDG REXEHEEZEZREREAA
Superior Delight Limited (4) Registered and beneficial owner 170,768,000 17.08%
=Y NSIZ)) Bk ERERA
Mr. Huang Quan Interest in a controlled corporation 170,768,000 17.08%
BEREA MR EHNEE 2 # s
(1) Harvest Sun Enterprises Limited is owned as to 48.60% by Mr. Liu (1) EBILEERNGIHEEFLLHEFI8.60%21E
Qingping and therefore, Mr. Liu Qingping is deemed to be interested in A B FEE LB IERERPEERI ]

@

3

“)

480,000,000 Shares held directly by Harvest Sun Enterprises Limited.

Fu Sun Development Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Liu Qingping and
therefore Mr. Liu Qingping is deemed to be interested in 75,000,000
Shares held by Fu Sun Development Limited under the SFO.

Mr. Liu Qingping is deemed to be indirectly interested in 555,000,000
Shares, ie. 556.50% of the issued capital of the Company through his
direct interests in Harvest Sun Enterprises Limited under the SFO. Mr. Liu
Qingping owns 16,234,000 Shares, ie. 1.62% on his personal interests.

Superior Delight Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Huang Quan and Mr.
Huang Quan is therefore deemed to be interested in 170,768,000 Shares
held by Superior Delight Limited under the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December, 2013, no person,
other than the Directors and Chief Executives of the Company whose
interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’
Interests And Short Positions In Shares, Underlying Shares And
Debentures” above, had any interest or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company which are required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the business of the Group,
to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

No contracts of significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries subsisted at the end of year or at
any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors has interests in any business which directly or indirectly
competes, or is likely to compete with the business of the Group.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors the confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board considers the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company does not have any share option scheme.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Company has not entered into any contract with any individual,
firm or body corporate to manage or administer the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company during the year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group mainly determines staff remuneration in accordance
with the qualification, years of experience, performance of individual
employee and the salary trend in PRC and will be reviewed regularly.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Particulars of the retirement benefits scheme of the Group are set
out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
where the Company is incorporated.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules since the
Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

AUDITORS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu resigned as auditor of the Group and Baker Tilly Hong
Kong Limited was appointed as auditor of the Group to fill the casual
vacancy to hold office until the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

The financial statements for the year were audited by Baker Tilly
Hong Kong Limited who will retire at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Qingping

Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March, 2014
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THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate
governance. The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider
that the Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out
in the CG Code throughout the financial year and up to the date of this
annual report.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate governance
of the Company to ensure that formal and transparent procedures are
in place to protect and maximize the interests of the shareholders of
the Company.

This report outlines the principles and the corporate governance
practices adopted and observed by the Company throughout the
financial year and up to the date of this annual report (the “Period
Under Review”).

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Directors’ Securities
Transactions (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. Directors are reminded of their obligations under the
Model Code on a regular basis. Following specific enquiry by the
Company, all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the Period
Under Review.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Functions of the Board

The principal function of the Board is to consider and approve
strategies, financial objectives, annual budget and investment
proposals of the Group and to assume the responsibilities of
corporate governance of the Group. The Board delegates the
authority and responsibility for implementing day-to-day operations,
business strategies and management of the Group’s businesses
to the executive Directors, senior management and certain specific
responsibilities to the Board committees.

Board Composition

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic
planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of
the Group. The executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors bring a variety of experiences and expertise to the Company.

As at 31 December, 2013 and at the date of this annual report, the
Board comprises four executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. The composition of the Board are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Qingping (Chairman)

Mr. Li Dengxiang

Ms. Qi Tongli

Mr. Zou Shengzhong (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Kin Sang
Mr. Li Yuchun
Mr. Dai Shunlin

The biographical details of all Directors are set out on pages 24 to 28
of this annual report. Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of
the Directors has any other financial, business, family or other material
or relevant relationships among members of the Board.

Each of the executive Directors of the Company entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the date of the Listing and may only be terminated
in accordance with the provisions of the service contract after the first
year of service of the Director by either party giving to the other not
less than three months’ prior notice in writing.
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The Company has issued an appointment letter to each of the non-
executive Directors and Independent non-executive Directors of the
Company for a term of three years commencing from the date of the
Listing unless terminated by either party giving to the other not less
than two months prior notice in writing.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should not be performed by the same individual.
To ensure a balance of power and authority, the Company has
appointed Mr. Liu Qingping as Chairman and Mr. Zou Shengzhong
as Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Liu Qingping and Mr. Zou Shengzhong
are both founders of the Group and possess rich knowledge and
experience of the textile industry. The Chairman is responsible for
the leadership and effective running of the Board and ensuring
that all material issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and
constructive manner. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the
management of the day-to-day operations of the Group’s business
and the implementation of the approved strategies of the Group. In
addition, each executive Director is responsible for the management of
the different functions of the business of the Group.

Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the Company has
appointed three independent non-executive Directors representing
more than one-third of the Board. Among the three independent non-
executive Directors, one of the independent non-executive Director,
Mr. Li Yuchun has appropriate related financial management expertise
as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The Company has
received from each of its independent non-executive Directors the
written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Board, based on such confirmation, considers all
independent non-executive Directors independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the Executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from the date of the Listing, subject
to termination by either party giving the other not less than 3 months’
prior written notice or such shorter period as both parties may agree.
In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, one-
third of the Directors or, if the number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third, will
retire from office by rotation and every Directors shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years. The Directors to retire every year will be those who have been
longest in office since their last re-election or appointment.
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Board Meetings and Board Practices

The Company adopted the practice of holding Board meetings for
executive Directors regularly throughout the year and at least four
meetings a year for both executive and non-executive Directors.
The Board will also meet on other occasions when a board-level
decision on a particular matter is required. The company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”) will assist the Chairman to
prepare the agenda of the meeting and each Director may request to
include any matters in the agenda. Generally, at least 14 days notice
would be given for the regular meeting by the Company. The Directors
will receive details of agenda items for decision at least 3 days before
each Board meeting. All Directors will be provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties, and upon reasonable request,
the Directors will be able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense. The Company
Secretary is responsible for ensuring that the procedures of the Board
meetings are observed and providing the Board with opinions on
matters in relation to the compliance with the procedures of the Board
meetings. All minutes of Board meetings were recorded in sufficient
detail the matters considered by the Board and decisions reached.

During the Period Under Review, the Board convened 4 board
meetings. Details of the attendance of Directors are as follows:

EZEEBRESEER

ARAREHRMA—BER ATESREEFETE
HRTESEEZ MATRFATESESF
RAOBTOREZ -BEREEFEIR—FH
ERER EFENENEtEEARER AR
AzARME ([REAWE]) BB EIFERESEH
FiE MEEFHAERFEMEEMAREZ
N ARB—RRBITERGAAMNEI14B F D
BE - BEEFHNBTREFTEEZELIHATKE
HAER ARIELRE -FBEERESKEDE
RABITTERE WESBERT AHRAEBR
SRBUBEER BABARRRE RAWE
BERREEFETESSERREF UpEST
EXZeeREFCEENEEERHUER -EF
EERLMAEECE CHACBESZEME
BZERREBIIRE -

REOEHRAN ESSERTIRESTEEH -5
BEEZHEHBOT:

No. of

Board meetings

attended/held

HE BT

Name of Directors EERR EEREERY

Executive Directors WITES

Mr. Liu Qingping (Chairman) BIETRLE (£/F) 4/4

Mr. Li Dengxiang BEERE 4/4

Ms. Qi Tongli JTRIBZ + 4/4

Mr. Liu Chunwei Blmmrst 2/2

Mr. Zou Shengzhong (Chief Executive Officer) BRI E (T AAZE) 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BIENITES

Mr. Chan Kin Sang PR {8 A 5 A 4/4

Mr. Li Yuchun TEREE 4/4

Mr. Dai Shunlin B AR S & 4/4
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CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

During the Period Under Review, Directors are provided with regular
updates on the Company’s performance, position and prospects
to enable the board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties. In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Company updates Directors on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Pang Wai Hong was appointed as the Company Secretary in
2009. His biographical details are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in the
annual report. During the Period Under Review, Mr. Pang attended
relevant professional training for not less than 15 hours pursuant to
new Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE AND
INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify
its Directors and officers in respect of legal actions against the
Directors. Throughout the Period Under Review, no claim had been
made against the Directors and the officers of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee
Composition

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises three members,
all are independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Yuchun
(Chairman), Mr. Chan Kin Sang and Mr. Dai Shunlin. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are:

(@) to consider and make recommendation to the Board on (i) the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor;
(i) the audit fee and the terms of engagement of the external
auditor; and (i) any questions of resignation or dismissal of that
auditor, taking into account the quality and rigour of the audit, the
quality of the audit service provided, the auditing firm’s quality
control procedures, relationships between the external auditors
and the Company, and the independence of the auditors. The
external auditors appointed by the Company shall be approved
by the Shareholders at the AGM;
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to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards issued from time to time
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, to
discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences,
the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations,
and to ensure co-ordination where more than one audit firm is
involved;

to develop and implement policy on engaging external auditor
(which includes any entity that is under common control,
ownership or management with the audit firm or any entity that
a reasonable and informed third party knowing of all relevant
information would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally) to supply non-audit services, to
report to the board, identifying and making recommendations on
any matters where action or improvement is needed;

to act as the principal representative of the Company with the
external auditor and to monitor the relationship between the
Company and the external auditor

to monitor integrity of financial statements of the Company and
the Company’s annual report and accounts, interim report and
quarterly financial highlights (or quarterly reports if prepared
for publication), and to review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them. In reviewing these reports before
submission to the Board, focusing particularly on:

(i)  any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv) the going concern assumption and any qualification;

(v) compliance with accounting standards, and

(vi) compliance with stock exchange and legal requirements;
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AW E

in conducting the review described in (d) above, members of the
Committee:

(i)  should liaise with the Board and Senior Management and
meet with the auditors at least twice a year; and

(i) consider any significant or unusual items that are, or may
need to be, reflected in such reports and accounts and
must give due consideration to any matters that have
been raised by the Company’s staff responsible for the
accounting and financial reporting function, compliance
officer(s) or auditors;

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

to discuss the internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control system. The discussion should include
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programme and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on internal control
matter as delegated by the board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

to review the Company’s statement on its internal control
systems (where one is included in the annual report) prior to
endorsement by the Board;
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(k) to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit
programme, ensure co-ordination between the internal and
external auditors, and ensure that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company;

()  to consider any findings of major investigations of internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response;

(m) to review the Company’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

(n) to review the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response;

(o) to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter;

(p) to report to the Board on the matters set out in paragraph C.3.3
of the CG Code (as amended from time to time);

(@) to review the following matters set up by the Company:
employees of the Company can report any irregularities, on a
confidential basis, identified in relation to financial reporting,
internal control and other matters. The Committee should ensure
that the Company has appropriate arrangement to ensure
that any reported matters will be investigated on a fair and
independent basis and appropriate actions will be taken; and

(N to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December, 2013 and
the unaudited interim financial report for the six months ended 30
June, 2013, including the accounting principles and practice adopted
by the Group.
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REBEHEA BERZEECRTREZEIER
% REBE AR R MR RERF R AR
BF TERHTESREEEBRE NEAQR
REBEMABRBTEZREH BAARRAZER W
EERMERRER -

During the Period Under Review, the Audit Committee had performed
their primary duties to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and the internal control procedures of the Company and had
also held meetings with the Company’s auditors, Baker Tilly without
the presence of executive Directors and management, to discuss
the auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters of the
Company.

Details of the members’ attendance of the Audit Committee meetings BEREZEESHRIREBEFEFBEOT:
are as follows:

No. of meetings

attended/held
HiE BT
Name of Directors EEHSE EEXE
Independent Non-executive Directors BWUIEHITES
Mr. Chan Kin Sang PR fid A 5 A 4/4
Mr. Li Yuchun TEHFEE 4/4
Mr. Dai Shunlin HEA S A 4/4
Remuneration Committee FMEES
Composition A%

The Remuneration Committee of the Company comprises three
members, namely Mr. Dai Shunlin (Chairman), Mr. Li Yuchun and Mr.
Liu Qingping, the majority of which are independent non-executive
Directors.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee are:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure of the remuneration of the Directors and the
Senior Management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

(c) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executives, Directors and Senior
Management;

(d) to review and approve the remuneration payable to the executive
Directors and Senior Management in connection with any loss
or termination of their office or appointment to ensure that such
remuneration is determined in accordance with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
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(e) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

() to ensure that no Director or any of his associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his own remuneration;
and

(9) with respect to any service contracts of Directors that require the
Shareholders’ approval under Rule 13.68 of the Listing Rules,
to advise the Shareholders as to whether the terms are fair and
reasonable, whether such contracts are in the interests of the
Company and its Shareholders as a whole, and as to how to
vote.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the Period Under
Review and had performed the following:

(i)  assessing individual performance of the Direction and Senior
Officers of the Group:

(i) reviewing specific remuneration packages of the Directors
and Senior Officers of the Group with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives as well as individual
performances; and

(i) reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on
compensation related issues.

Details of the members’ attendance of the Remuneration Committee
meetings are as follows:
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(i) B BEBAFGWNEERE TRAEESRERE
EE

FNLZBega K BHEFBNT:

No. of meetings

attended/held
HiE BT

Name of Directors BEEHR eBRY
Independent Non-executive Directors BIENITES
Mr. Dai Shunlin BEMRE & 1/
Mr. Li Yuchun TEELE 1/1
Executive Director WITES
Mr. Liu Qingping BIEFEE 1/1
Remuneration of Directors EE

The Company has adopted full disclosure of remunerations of AAFERMNZEBERESTH W TR B@E
Directors with disclosure by name, amount and type in note 12 to the BsF12iE IS o % SERIER T AR E -

financial statements.
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Nomination Committee
Composition

The Nomination Committee of the Company currently comprises three
members, namely Mr. Chan Kin Sang (Chairman), Mr. Dai Shunlin and
Mr. Liu Qingping, the majority of which are independent non-executive
Directors.

Pursuant to the code provision A.5.6 of the CG Code, listed issuers
are required to adopt a board diversity policy. The Company has
adopted the Board Diversity Policy in March 2014. The policy sets
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board of the Company
which include but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional
experience. The Nomination Committee will review annually the
structure, size and composition of the Board and where appropriate,
make recommendations on changes to the Board that are relevant to
the Company’s business growth.

The primary function of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(@) to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and to
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorship;

(c) to assess the independence of the INEDs, having regard to the
requirements under the Listing Rules; and

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors in particular, the Chairman and the Managing
Director.

All appointments of directors were nominated by the Nomination
Committee based on considerations including vacancy available,
competence and experience, possession of requisite skills and
qualifications, independence and integrity.

The Nomination Committee met once during the Period Under Review
and had performed the following:

(@) reviewing and evaluating the composition of the Board with
reference to certain criteria. These criteria included qualifications
required under the Listing Rules or any other relevant laws
regarding characteristics and skills of the Directors, professional
ethics and integrity, appropriate professional knowledge and
industry experience, as well as ability to devote sufficient time to
the work of the Board and its committees and to participate in all
Board meetings and shareholders’ meetings;

(b) reviewing and recommending the re-appointment of the retiring
Directors for re-election at the previous general meeting; and

(c) assessing independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors.
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Details of the members’ attendance of the Nomination Committee
meetings are as follows:

RAZECEZIKEBLFEFBOT

No. of meetings

attended/held
HE BT

Name of Directors BEEHR eBRY
Independent Non-executive Directors BUENITES
Mr. Chan Kin Sang PR {8 A 58 A 1/1
Mr. Dai Shunlin IR £ 1/1
Executive Director WITES
Mr. Liu Qingping BIEFEE 1/1
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT BEREX
Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Financial EERREMEUERRZER

Statements

The Directors understand and acknowledge their responsibility for
making sure that the financial statements for each financial year are
prepared to reflect the true and fair view of the state of affairs, results
and cash flow of the Group and in compliance with relevant law and
disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December, 2013, the Board has
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis. The
Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps
to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud
and other irregularities. The Directors also warrant that the Group’s
financial statements will be published in a timely manner.

External Auditors

During the year ended 31 December 2013, Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu resigned as auditor of the Group and Baker Tilly Hong
Kong Limited was appointed as auditor of the Group to fill the casual
vacancy to hold office until the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

The financial statements for the year were audited by Baker Tilly
Hong Kong Limited who will retire at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
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During the financial year, the remuneration paid or payable to the
Baker Tilly in respect of its audit and non-audit services is set out
below:

KA BFERER LB MIFZERB B HE
NRBZHMT

RMB 000
Types of Services R % 28 7B AREFor
Current year KEE
Audit services ZE RS 1,233
Non-audit services IEAZ EUR TS 47

The above non-audit services include the professional advisory on
taxation and the review of preliminary results announcement.

Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. While no cost-effective
internal control system can provide absolute assurance against loss
or misstatement, the Group’s internal controls and systems have
been designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are
safeguarded, operational controls are in place, business risks are
suitably protected, proper accounting records are maintained and
financial information used within the business and for publication are
reasonable and accurate.

During the financial year, the Company has conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems of major
operating segment of the Company with the assistance of an
independent professional accounting firm. At the meeting of the Audit
Committee held on 31 March 2014, the independent professional
accounting firm reported their review work for the year ended 31
December 2013 performed in accordance with the detailed risk-
based internal control review plan which was approved by the Audit
Committee. The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems
for the year ended 31 December 2013. The Audit Committee
members, together with the senior management, have also reviewed,
considered and discussed all findings relating to the internal control
systems and recommendations for improvement.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance duties as required under the Revised CG Code:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior officers of the Group;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the codes of conduct applicable
to employees and the Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and the
Revised CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report.

During the Period Under Review, the Board considered the following
corporate governance matters:

(i)  review of the compliance with the Model Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report; and

(i) review of the effectiveness of the internal controls of the Group by
the Audit Committee.

SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

Pursuant to Articles 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at the general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at general meetings
by shareholders

There are no provision allowing shareholders to move new resolutions
at general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or
the Articles of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish
to move a resolution may request the Company to convene a general
meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

As regards, proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer
to the procedures available on the websites of the Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Room 911, 9/F, Block A, Hunghom Commercial
Centre, 39 Ma Tau Wai Road, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear, timely and
effective communication with Shareholders and investors. The Group
is committed to ensure that the Shareholders and the investors receive
accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely information of the Group
by the publication of announcements, circulars, interim reports and
annual reports. The Company also publishes all documents on the
Company’s website at www.taifeng.cc.

The Board believes that effective communication with the investment
community is essential. The Board continues to maintain regular
dialogues with the investment community to keep them abreast of
the Group’s business and development as well as operating strategy
and prospects. The Annual General Meeting of the Company also
provides a forum for dialogue and interaction with the Shareholders.
The Directors and the committee members are available to answer
questions during the Annual General Meeting.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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‘g:.?
BAKER TILLY

HONG KONG LIMITED
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

R vt &t s A IR 2 vl

2nd Floor, 625 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong
HFdbAE RE625% 21

To the shareholders of
China Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
55 to 128, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2013
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Choi Kwong Yu
Practising Certificate Number P05071

Hong Kong, 31 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeBRERkREtEZEKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE—F——F+_HA=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k23 AR¥FTT ARETFT
Revenue & 6 2,147,618 2,401,049
Cost of sales $HE KA (1,520,030) (1,451,579)
Gross profit EX 627,588 949,470
Other income HA 7 10,120 6,921
Other gains and (losses) Eﬂﬂ”ﬂl =X (E8) 8 (30,372) (9,770)
Distribution and selling expenses 8 R IHE M X (109,289) (136,930)
Administrative expenses THFAX (35,718) (31,185)
Impairment loss on an —HAHEHEREZ
available-for-sale investment BEEE = (4,452)
Finance costs BF TS R AR 9 (41,260) (18,327)
Profit before taxation R %% A1 Sa R 421,069 755,727
Income tax expense FRr 5%t i 2 10 (123,587) (237,651)
Profit for the year FRHFA 11 297,482 518,076
Other comprehensive (expense)/ Hiab2mE (BX) Wz
income, net of tax BeEH
ltems that may be reclassified HerAENoEEEEm
subsequently to profit or loss: BHH:
Fair value loss on an available-for-sale —IHAHEHEREZ
investment NEEEE - (4,452)
Impairment loss on an available-for- —IHAHEHEREZ
sale investment B BB - 4,452
Total comprehensive income FRAEZHERZEEHE
for the year 297,482 518,076
Profit and total comprehensive income AN Al #E A A FE {5 6 A5 Al
for the year attributable to owners of PENT ek
the Company 297,482 518,076
Basic and diluted earnings per share BRERREEREF
(RMB) (ARE) 14 0.297 0.518
The notes on pages 61 to 128 form F6121288 2 M sEAER It
part of these consolidated financial EREUBHER 2 —F
statements. 7o
Dividends &8
paid =X 13 52,000 86,000
proposed 7K 13 - 52,000
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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At 31 December 2013
ST et = 5 = —

2013 2012 2011
—E2-= —T——F —T——F
(Restatedq)
(HZEZI)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HisF ARETFT AREFT ARETFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VEN S 15 425,228 470,717 515,950
Prepaid lease payments BNHEERIE 16 6,925 7,103 7,280
Deposit paid for acquisition of BATHMERERETZ
land use rights and buildings Bftke 17 61,920 61,920 61,920
Trademark iz 18 6,934 6,934 6,934
Deferred tax assets BEHIBEE 28 10,029 2,699 2,699
Available-for-sale investment AfHERE 19 6,614 6,614 11,066
Lease deposit BEHRERS 27,000 = =
Deferred expenses B 20 8,615 = =
553,265 555,987 605,849
CURRENT ASSETS nREEE
Inventories =& 21 71,751 86,589 117,575
Trade and other receivables and JEWBR R R H ﬁﬁJE WA
prepayments AR TERFIE 22 1,465,179 1,076,697 635,972
Prepaid lease payments BNHEERE 16 178 178 179
Pledged bank deposits BEEBRITER 23 12,400 72,965 46,761
Bank balances and cash RITEB LIRS 23 1,443,090 1,205,905 842,525
2,992,598 2,442,334 1,643,012
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE
Trade and other payables and accruals — JE{S BR 20K E 4t FE A 71 IR
AR FERTE A 24 354,163 418,373 295,609
Tax payable FE IR 46,925 111,342 84,311
Amount due to a shareholder N —RIRRFIA 25 27,200 27,200 27,200
Bank borrowings RITEE 26 428,100 316,100 163,810
Obligations under finance lease BEEEAE 27 40,000 = =
896,388 873,015 570,930
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 2,096,210 1,569,319 1,072,082
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBAR
LIABILITIES 2,649,475 2,125,306 1,677,931
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At 31 December 2013
RZFE—=FF+=-H=+—H

2013 2012 2011
—E—= —E——F —E——fF
(Restateaq)
(#ZEZI)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 AR¥FT AR¥Fr AREFTT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kREBEE
Obligations under finance lease MEHEAE 27 270,000 = =
Deferred tax liabilities EREHIBEE 28 55,118 46,431 31,132
325,118 46,431 31,132
NET ASSETS BEETFE 2,324,357 2,078,875 1,646,799
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRRfHE
Share capital [N 29 88,000 88,000 88,000
Reserves fE 2,236,357 1,990,875 1,558,799
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 2,324,357 2,078,875 1,646,799
The consolidated financial statements on pages 55 to 128 were E55FE128E AR M BHMEFENR T —NE=

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31
March 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

Liu Qingping

2EF
Director

EF

Zou Shengzhong
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B2 T =FF-A=+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AARRANEE
Contributions Share-based PRC  Investment
Share Share Merger Special from payment general  revaluation Capital Retained
capital premium reserve reserve  shareholders reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
R TE R&
B REGEE Gakk REIRE BRREE HERE Rt EftRE ERRE REER @t
(note 30) (note 31) (note 30) (note 31)
(Hit30) (Hrz31) (Hit30) (Hi#31)
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 AMB000 RMB000 AMB000 RMB000 AMB000 RMB000 AMB000
AREFT AREFr AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFr ARETT ARETT AREFr AREFr ARETT
At 1 January 2012
R-Z-—#—f—-H 88,000 342,054 180,000 977 13,289 17,476 161,584 - 34,763 808,656 1,646,799
Profit for the year
EREH = = = = - - - - - 518,076 518,076
Fair value loss on an available-for-sale
investment
—EAfINERE 2 AT EER - - - - = = = (4,452) = = (4,452)
Impairment loss on an available-for-sale
investment
—BAHHERE 2 HEHR - - - - - - - 4,452 - - 4,452
Total comprehensive income for the year
FR2ENEEE - = = - - - - - - 518,076 518,076
Transfer from/(to) reserves
2ga/(2)%h - - - - - - 61,430 - - (61,430) -
Dividend recognised and paid as distribution
(note 13)
BRADRRERZRE (H#13) - - - - - - - - - (86,000) (86,000)
At 31 December 2012 and
at 1 January 2013
RZB-Z5+-A=+-Hk
“T-=%-f-H 88,000 342,054 180,000 977 13,289 17,476 223,014 - 34,763 1,179,302 2,078,875
Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year
ENEHREENHLE - - - - - - - - - 297,482 297,482
Transfer from/(to) reserves
BRE/(2)EE - - - - - - 32,329 - = (32,329) =
Dividend recognised and paid as distrioution
(note 13)
BARDERE R ZRE (H213) - - - - - - - - - (52,000) (52,000)
At 31 December 2013
RZZ-=f+-fA=t-H 88,000 342,054 180,000 977 13,289 17,476 255,343 - 34,763 1,392,455 2,324,357

The notes on pages 61 to 128 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE—_F—=—F1+_-_HA=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
(Restated)
(A=)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR¥TTT AREF T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXK
Profit before taxation B 74 B 421,069 755,727
Adjustments for: TYSIBEL AR
Depreciation of property, M WBERZETE
plant and equipment 11 46,978 45,554
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE K
plant and equipment R 2 B R 11 341 =
Impairment loss on an —HAHHEREZ
available-for-sale investment VERIEN R - 4,452
Impairment loss recognised in FETET FIERER
respect of prepayments RIEEE 8 1,443 -
Finance costs B 7% A A 9 41,260 18,327
Impairment loss recognised in BLFE AR SRFE R
respect of trade receivables B BT 1B 8 8,259 10,520
Provision for compensation BB EE 8 18,239 =
Provision for inventories written down GFEREREE 8 3,737 =
Release of prepaid lease payments fEBRTE TR E IR 11 178 178
Bank interest income RITH B UA 7 (6,466) (6,212)
Operating cash flows before changes in 238 & & & 851 2
working capital KERSME 535,038 828,546
Decrease in inventories FEmD> 11,101 30,986
Decrease/(increase) in trade and JFEE M52 B R B L th 8 s 3k T A
other receivables and prepayments MIERRER D,
(1Zn) 46,301 (269,245)
Decrease in trade and FEAST BR 3 N L b FE 5 SR IE
other payables and accruals AR FEET & AR (84,279) (59,236)
Cash generated from operations EEEREE RS 508,161 531,051
Income taxes paid BEAIHIE (186,647) (195,321)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM REEBELEZRETFH
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 321,514 335,730
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Placement of pledged bank deposits FEEEBIRITERK (12,400) (89,242)
Purchase of property, plant and BEWME BELEKE
equipment - (821)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits IRMEERIRITFE K 72,965 63,038
Interest received B F & 6,466 6,212
Advances to third parties ERTRILE=F (480,100) =
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETBHBACRSFE
ACTIVITIES (413,069) (20,313)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
EiE—T— = f=F—HIEF

2013 2012
—E—=F —E-_fF
(Restated)
(#5&E3)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR¥ T ABRET T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES R ESE S
Repayment of bank borrowings ERFETEE (316,100) (238,911)
Dividend paid AR E (52,000) (86,000)
Interest paid B E (41,260) (18,327)
New bank borrowings raised FrERT 1ii & 428,100 391,201
Repayment of finance lease EEREMEE (30,000) =
Procurement of sales and FREMEREE
finance leaseback 340,000 -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM MEITBHELEZRESFHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 328,740 47,963
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRESEEYEBMERE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 237,185 363,380
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FIzREeREELEEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,205,905 842,525
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZESRESEEY
AT END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and LARIT#E 82 RIR SRR
cash 1,443,090 1,205,905
The notes on pages 61 to 128 form part of these consolidated FO1R128H 2 M sF4E/ I S5 Rz 2 —

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE—_F—=—F1+_-_HA=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
Cayman Islands.

The addresses of the registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and
Room 911, 9th floor, Block A, Hunghom Commercial Centre, 39
Ma Tau Wai Road, Hong Kong, respectively.

The shares of the Company have been listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with effect from 11 June 2010.
The immediate and ultimate holding company of the Company
was Harvest Sun Enterprises Limited (“Harvest Sun”) from the
date of incorporation to 11 June 2010. Harvest Sun, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, became the substantial
shareholder of the Company with its shareholding of 48% after
11 June 2010.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) are production and distribution of cotton yarns and
bedding products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the same as the functional currency of the
group entities and the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following revised
and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

HKFRS 7 Disclosure — Offsetting Financial Assets
(Amendments) and Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and  Consolidated Financial Statements,
HKFRS 12 (Amendments)  Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities: Transition
Guidance

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
ErE e — = aE e = 5 = =Bl T
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of Items of

Other Comprehensive Income

HKAS 27 Separate Financial Statement
(as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28 Investment in Associates and

Joint Ventures
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle

(as revised in 2011)
HKFRSs (Amendments)

Except for described below, the application of the revised and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and the positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income”

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation
of Items of Other Comprehensive Income. Upon the adoption
of the amendments to HKAS 1, the Group’s ‘Statement of
comprehensive income’ is renamed as the ‘Statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income’. The amendments
to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in either a single statement or in
two separate but consecutive statements. Furthermore, the
amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be
made in the other comprehensive section such that items of
other comprehensive income are grouped into two categories:
(a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items
of other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on
the same basis — the amendments do not change the option to
present items of other comprehensive income either before tax or
net of tax. The amendments have been applied retrospectively,
and hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive
income has been modified to reflect the changes.

Other than the above mentioned presentation changes, the
application of the amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in any
impact on profit or loss, other comprehensive income and total
comprehensive income.

FER# T RAEBT BB B RELER
(EEMBHRELEN]) (&)

EESIERFIE  HBRERABEZ
CHES) 23|

EEGIEAETE  BUMBRE
(ZF——4EI5HT)

EERHRAEEY  HBEATRABLY

(ZT——FKBFT) ZREA
BB E B EER —ETNE_T——
(BRI ) BREBMBREE
Rz FEHE

B TXXAASN RAFERBEEM B RS
BRI ZEFTHARERAFRERBEFEZ
BBRARBERRR, REZSEA M
BRABCHBELBREATE -

EREEREIN (BRIF) [H2EK
AEEWZ5]

AEECDEREESAEAFEIR (BFTA)
Hi2ERABBENE5 - KA EE G
AIF1R (BRI A) & ARE [2E K
T EARIBakEMEEKER] -FE
GBS (BRI A)RENE —HRKK
MBS FRIEEENRREINER M EME
EA BB ERE - WO B GRTERIF15R
(BRI R EREM2EE D& TIEL N
BINEE EREMEEBARBAED S
WIE: @ERTEEMDEERSMNIAR
RORETEETEGRFR RRAIEHOHEE
BEMIAR Hib2EWAREMFAEHA
BRI EE T AD B - 5] A oL B IR R
BATSKFR TR 25 2 U AR B H)E 2
B-mRCEYERARETA  Fit &b
EEBAEBENZIIEEERTARBKRES -

bk Lt 25| 285 ERE A G ERR
15 (BRI A) XA e HBaE 2 EKRA
REERABBEBKRIMNZE-

China Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited & B2 2 /K 2 i B[R A &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE—_F—=—F1+_-_HA=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. EAFMIRKBIEBMEHREER
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (BB BEREER]) (2Z)
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective ERTEERERZHITIRCETEBHE
wEZER
The Group has not early applied the following new and revised NEEVWHIZEFER T2 BHAE 15 R &K
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective: ZHEI R RIEETE S EREEL -
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? RN EREERENE ST AC
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and EEMBREERER R BEMKRELENSEE
(Amendments) Transition Disclosure’ BEEMBEREENETR  RUGEHABHRBE
CHEN) 5 &%
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and  Investment Entities’ ERMBREEUEI0R . CERE
HKAS 27 (Amendments) BRI REEL
(as revised in 2011) F1RRAEL &L
F275% (1B3IX)
(ZE——5KEF)
HKAS 19 (Amendments) Defined Benefit Plans: Employee BB EAE19% ARERHEE: EEHFC
Contribution? (BFIAR)
HKAS 32 (Amendments) Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial BB SR F305% W BEE L& E &
Liabilities’ (BETA)
HKAS 36 (Amendments) Recoverable Amount Disclosures for b et R $365E FEeREEZ NS
Non-Financial Assets’ (EFTA) e
HKAS 39 (Amendments) Novation of Derivatives and Continuation BB SR F305 METEZER R hEe
of Hedge Accounting’ C-HEN) STEZEE
HK(FRIC) Int 21 Levies’ BE (ARMBHRERE HE
ZE®)-RBEAR
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs ety B SRl || E T T e ek
2010 - 2012 Cycle? C-HES) BB GRS
HEEYHE
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BB GRS ER| =l o
2011 - 2013 Cycle? (B3IK) HREEBMBREER
MEERE
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts? BRI HREERE145 EERTEKRE
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. 1 R-F—pF—F—HaL Z 8 F15.2 F/ZH
BAERL
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014. 2 R-FE—mE+H—Ha 2 #FH152 FER
ARG
9 Available for applicable — the mandatory effective date will be 3 O] (& fE FH — 7% #1144 34 3 B 5 5 B & 5B
determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised. IR ER EOF A E B R EE -
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. 4 REF—NF—H—HaLZ 8 F152 FZH
BAERL -
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of RKANREETEHER ST RE(EET 4
these new and revised standards, amendments or interpretation B Bi]skR B RNER 2 2E R ERR
will have no material impact on the results and the financial TeELERTE-

position of the Group.
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RESTATEMENTS OF PRIOR YEAR’S FIGURES

In preparing the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2013, certain bank borrowings under
purchase order financing arrangement of RMB213,100,000 and
respective prepayment of RMB213,100,000 are recognised
initially in the financial year of 2012. The restatements of these
balances in 2012 of prepayment and bank borrowings have
resulted in an increase in current assets and current liabilities of
RMB213,100,000 respectively. The restatements do not have
an financial impact on the group’s net assets, profit for the year
and the calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
as reported in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use
in HKAS 36.
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BIEFEZEAMEHRREE A EmEE
&7 B IRITIE KA AR 213,100,0007T &
EEZ A RFAARE213,100,0007T % Y]
ER-ZE——F2HHRFEEHNR -BHER
MEFZENDFIEBHRBEERRBAE
RIE 0 A R #213,100,0007T ° I B 51 $ AR
ER—ZT——F+_-_A=+—BHNHRAUE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to
the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote
holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Company has, or does not have, the current ability to direct
the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Company gains
control until the date when the Company ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currency) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case
they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general
policy on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy in respect
of borrowing cost above). Contingent rentals are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Gains or losses on sale and leaseback transactions which result
in finance leases are deferred and amortised over the terms of
the related leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. In the event that lease
incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments are carried at cost and amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible assets and intangible assets
below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated cost of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Share-based payment

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of shares transferred at the date of transfer is

expensed on a straight-line basis over the service period with a
corresponding increase in equity (Share-based payment reserve).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as available-for-sale
financial assets and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continueqd)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans
and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial
assets relating to interest income calculated using the effective
interest method and dividends on available-for-sale equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in
the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When
the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets except those at FVTPL are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:
e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation; or

e  disappearance of an active market for the financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period in which the impairment takes place.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities (including trade and other
payables, bank borrowings, obligation under finance lease and
amount due to a shareholder) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continueq)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent
of its continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Annual Report 2013 4F ik

BERXBHEE (&)
ERWMTHE (&)

THEERRATA(E)

I}

B P E0E

’

ERNSEZRHESRABEERARNE
FAHBE S RN ERAX 2775  BERAEER
TRBEZEAFHN (WER) R HRE
AR AT RFBRS AR (BREERERA
KERBO 2B NRERERRFEE
B RPRAREMGEXITE) ENLHER
W 2 BREDFE 2 F| &K -

M EFXIRERH B EERER
AU B

EERSREENDRSREZANEND
ER AERMEECERERAKEDHER
TREEHRAEZBRID AR RO HRER
ERERE AEETERIERCRE
E-WASEYBERNREFFENEA
MR ROR TEEZEHCEREE ]
AEEGRBEREE EUAEKFESERE
ERR UEARBEE HAKERECDE
ETMEERBENEARYRERREE -
AEBERBEEAZTHEE TEEAC
WS SRR H) B R B K

REzRIIERAECHEER EEREESR
B W K A (B A K B 70 B At 2 T M 2 FE 3R
W e T Rt 2 Rt BERAMZBZ 28R
HERmPRHER-

EREEAEEZ EEERER  BUESER
B AEERIEERSRA S - KR LER
TREBECREAERCNRENREZER
HERmPRHER-

77



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
i — = aE e = o = =Bl

4.

78

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment losses on tangible assets and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they may be
impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

()  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

Annual Report 2013 4F ik

BERETBE (&)
B EE

EASERBEEEMAZETHERER OX
EEBHMERS) X ERATERERET
RE - MZEBH SRS S fhaT
rEBeHZEBEARTEE:

ERRBEFAENSHEEEEE B EEK
HEN RN EEE 2% HREARE
THEREBATE XN HENKERT -WUR
Bt B BERABRPRTRERBABE LT
MARERERAE ERHSERZFHR
enENRE(EEENREEEARERXR

FER) -

IMRBEFETBEMT R ALEMEH —
BosmE Bﬁ%@%ﬂ%ﬂfﬁﬁgm i
EEERIAGEELRTERAEE RaLsn 5
AER THERIAR/EE-

BBAL

@ MBARZEAZIBRREKXE L ME
AERATER TR BEAEE A REB

() AIEEHIskEERESIAEE
(i) HAEBBEEATEN: =X

(i) ERAEEIAEEIFARNEE
EBABZKE -

79



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

PR R RE

For the year ended 31 December 2013
i — = aE e = o = =Bl

4.

80

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi)

(vii)

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

A person identified in (a)() has significant influence

over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are disclosed below.

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives of and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the actual useful lives of assets of
similar nature and functions. It could change significantly as a
result of significant technical innovations and competitor actions
in response to industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation charges where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives or will write-off or write-down technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. The
impairment loss for property, plant and equipment is recognised
for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment at 31 December 2013 was RMB425,228,000 (2012:
RMB470,717,000).

Estimated allowance for trade and other receivables

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of receivables.
Allowance for these receivables is made based on the evaluation
of collectability, creditability and on management’s judgment by
reference to the estimation of the future cash flows discounted at
an effective interest rate to calculate the present value.

A considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these debtors, including their current
creditworthiness. If the actual future cash flows were less
than expected, additional allowance may be required. As at
31 December 2013, the carrying amount of receivables is
RMB1,462,595,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
RMB27,026,000) (2012: carrying amount of RMB1,076,697,000,
net of allowance for doubtful debts of RMB17,324,000).
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82

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Inventory valuation method

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The net realisable value is estimated by reference to selling
price of inventory subsequent to the end of the reporting period.
The Group reviews its inventory levels in order to identify slow-
moving merchandise and use markdown to clear merchandise.
If the actual selling prices of inventory were less than expected,
additional allowance may be required.

As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of inventories is
RMB71,751,000 (net of provision for stock of RMB15,830,000)
(2012: carrying amount of RMB86,589,000 net of provision for
stock of RMB12,093,000).

Deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for the deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred income tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The
carrying amount of deferred income tax assets at 31 December
2013 was approximately RMB10,029,000 (2012: approximately
RMB2,699,000).

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. The directors of
the Company are responsible in determining the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The directors
of the Company work closely with the independent qualified
professional valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The directors regularly
assess the impact and the cause of fluctuations in the fair value
of the assets and liabilities.
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R-_E—=F+_F=+—H HEZEA
BEAARYET1,751,0007T (1B FEEE A
R#15,830,0000T) (ZE—=F : [RAEAEAR
AR #86,589,0007 (MK FEREE AR
12,093,0007T) ) °
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continueq)

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are
not based on observable market data to estimate the fair value of
certain types of financial instruments. Note 39(c) provide detailed
information about the valuation techniques, inputs and key
assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of various
assets and liabilities.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports regularly reviewed by the board of directors, who are the
chief operating decision makers, for the purpose of allocating
resources to segments and assessing their performance.

The Group’s revenue are all generated from its PRC subsidiaries
which have two operating segments, the manufacture and
distribution of cotton yarns and bedding products. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers different
products and requires different information technology systems
and marketing strategies. The following summary describes the
operations in each of the Group’s operating segments.

The manufacture and distribution of cotton yarns segment
refers to the operation of cotton yarns tailored to the specific
requirements of customers, such as different texture, thickness,
sheen and elasticity. Its income mainly comprises sales revenue
of cotton yarns to textile manufacturers in both the domestic and
overseas markets. Cotton yarns are used in the production of
cotton textile which is used in garments and furnishings.

The manufacture and distribution of bedding products segment
refers to the manufacture and distribution of bedding products
such as bed covers, flat sheets, pillow cases, bed sheets and
quilt covers, as well as combination sets of such bedding
products. Its income mainly comprises sales revenue of bedding
products from products sold under the “TAIFENG” brand in
the Mainland People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) market
and products sold to overseas OEM customers under their
international brands.

No segment information of liabilities is provided to the chief
operating decision makers for the assessment of performance of
different segments. Therefore, only segment revenue, segment
profit and segment assets are presented.
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

S e e HIFFE

An analysis of the Group’s segment revenue, profit and assets by
operating and reportable segment is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2013

WEK D RER (&)

AEBEREERR
AN REEZDNMT :

\ 37
N

D

BEI7D

ok

B

E;k

HE-E2-=F+-A=+-BLEE
Manufacture
Manufacture and
and distribution of Inter-
distribution of bedding Segment segment Consolidated
cotton yarns products total elimination Unallocated total
BER HER
DEWMY DHKR M par: F- iy P Ao SE AAE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT  ARETH  AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT
Revenue from external REINEBEP 2 Wizt
customers 981,452 1,166,166 2,147,618 - - 2,147,618
Inter-segment sales AHEHE - - - - - -
Segment revenue iRzl 981,452 1,166,166 2,147,618 - - 2,147,618
Segment profit AR A 102,129 384,762 486,891 - - 486,891
Segment assets as at =F+=A
31 December 2013 _Jr AzRHhEE 831,644 592,302 1,423,946 - - 1,423,946
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision THIRH T I ELEERRE R ATED %
makers and included in the measure of segment profit and AR EERGAZTRIEA:
assets:
Addition to non-current assets R ANFER BN & E
(note) (Hiit) 354,896 - 354,806 - - 354,896
Depreciation of property, NE BERRENE
plant and equipment 44,684 450 45,134 - 1,844 46,978
Release of prepaid lease FERBENEERE
payments 178 - 178 - - 178
Impairment loss recognised in 3t EYLER SER 2
respect of trade receivables BB R 2,453 5,806 8,259 - - 8,259
Impairment loss recognised in ~ FLTA B HE R
respect of prepayments RERE 1,443 - 1,443 - - 1,443
Provision for inventories FERERE
written down - 3,737 3,737 - - 3,737
Note:  Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred Kl FERBHEETERIESRIARREREE

tax assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

EBE—F

6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuead)

—ZEF A=A EE

6.

WK RBER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

HE-Z-——F+-_A=1T—HILFE
Manufacture
Manufacture and
and distribution of Inter-
distribution of bedding Segment segment Consolidated
cotton yarns products total elimination Unallocated total
SER HER
Vak=int s ok N H s A EE APE e B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFIT ARETFT AREFT
Revenue from external REMNFEP 2 Wi
customers 985,518 1,415,531 2,401,049 - - 2,401,049
Inter-segment sales AR E = 220 220 (220) = =
Segment revenue GaRsL G 985,518 1,415,751 2,401,269 (220) = 2,401,049
Segment profit GaRziyiagil 128,338 674,818 803,156 = = 803,156
Segment assets as at “#+=H
31 December 2012 (restated) _‘|' AZHHEE
(ZE7)) 1,217,156 469,275 1,686,431 - = 1,686,431
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision THIEEAFIFELSEREEL A =D 2%
makers and included in the measure of segment profit and TR EERT A ZTA:
assets:
Addition to non-current assets R INFETREB L E (A7iF)
(note) 10 93 103 - 218 321
Depreciation of property, ME WERRETE
plant and equipment 43,343 489 43,832 = 1,722 45,554
Release of prepaid lease R BN EEHE
payments 178 = 178 = = 178
Impairment loss recognised in 5t EURBR A HER 2
respect of trade receivables  JR{EEE 2,099 8,421 10,520 - - 10,520
Note:  Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred Kiat: FERBEETEESMIAREEREBE

tax assets.
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(@) Performance of the operating segments is measured based
on segment profit. Income tax expense is not allocated to
operating segments.

(b) Reconciliation of segment profit

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each
segment without the allocation of central administrative
costs, interest income, finance costs and impairment loss
on an available-for-sale investment. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision makers for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment

WEkoHER (£)

(a) %%ﬁ%Z%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ D B F A= o
SR T 2o REEEL D0

(b) 7 EEF ZE R

7 8P MR 0 BRI AR D FL A RITH
A B AR B — TR AT
tlj%&;éz}mﬁﬁﬁ?%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬂiz}ﬁiﬂ
BERBBDRAEEZERRERD

éﬁ&pﬂﬁ"*ﬁi‘éﬁ{’ﬁﬂj#&izgﬁ°
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performance.
Segment profit is reconciled to profit before taxation of the 2205 M| ER 2N £2 B MR B B s A 2 S BR 40
Group as follows: ~:
2013 2012
—E-=F —=E—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFor
Total segment profit 7 BB ' FI| 42 RE 486,891 803,156
Unallocated income: ROBEWA -
Interest income F B UA 9,830 6,212
Other income and other gains H U A R H b Ug 25 290 1,151
Unallocated expenses: ROBHX:
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BEMEEZEE
plant and equipment (341) =
Depreciation of property, Y- BEREREITE
plant and equipment (1,844) (1,722)
Finance costs B 75 K AR (41,260) (18,327)
Impairment loss on —IEHA N ERE ZREEE
an available-for-sale investment - (4,452)
Central administrative costs AR R 7T AR 2R (32,497) (30,291)
Profit before taxation B B B s A 421,069 755,727

China Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited 2 B2z
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6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuea) 6.
(c) Reconciliation of segment assets (c)

The assets of the Group are allocated to the operating
segments based on the operations of the segments.
However, certain property, plant and equipment, deferred
tax asset, available-for-sale investment, other receivables
and prepayments, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash, are not allocated as they relate to more
than one reportable and operating segments.

Segment assets are reconciled to total assets of the Group
by reportable segment as follows:

WK o aRER (&)

DEEEZH IR

AEBZEENRBEDHEB I REL
BORE AT ANETWE  BE KR
B BEEHAEE AHHERE H
flo B M SRIB R T IR - EERARITE
FARBITEB RS LB —(ER
EREENE WREHBREELD
fic o

DEEEEAEEREERBREDILZ
HERUWT
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2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——F
(Restateq)
(#EE )
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T A S5
Total segment assets DEEERE 1,423,946 1,686,431
Unallocated assets: RAOMEE:
Property, plant and equipment VI BB KR 25,953 19,716
Deferred tax assets FEFIAE E 10,029 2,699
Available-for-sale investment AEHERE 6,614 6,614
Other receivables and H & W SR8 R TR A 5B
prepayments 623,831 3,991
Pledged bank deposits 2B ITER 12,400 72,965
Bank balances and cash RITEBR RS 1,443,090 1,205,905
Total assets per consolidated AR RN EERE
statement of financial position 3,545,863 2,998,321
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.
(d) Information about geographical areas
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s

revenue from external customers by geographical markets,
irrespective of the origin of the goods.

WEK D RER (&)

(d BAREZER

TREHRASEREINBEFRILET
BED (TimE IR ) 2 Was AT -

Turnover by
geographical markets

RiENSE S 2 EEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TTT AREFoT
PRC (country of the domicile) R (FEff i) 2,123,766 2,361,510
United States & Brazil EEEER 3,423 23,896
Hong Kong & Macau BB KRB 19,112 10,030
Europe (EP 1,317 5,613
2,147,618 2,401,049

The Group’s non-current assets (excluding deferred tax
assets and available-for-sale investment) are nearly all
located in PRC.
(e) Information about major customers contributing over
10% of total revenue of the Group

The revenue from the Group’s largest customer was
approximately RMB370,440,000 and RMB388,696,000,
representing 17.2% and 16.2% of the total sales of the
Group for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012,
respectively. The revenue from the largest customer was
derived from cotton yarns segment (2012: from beddings
products segment).

88
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AEBZIERBEE (REEHAEE
KAl gt ERE AN TEMARHE -

BRAXEEREHEETREB10%Z
FERFER

HE T =K -_ZFT——F+_-A
=+—HLEFE REAKEEEAEF
Z W o Bl 4 A A R ¥370,440,00070
T AR #388,696,0007T © tHHE RANEE
HE M 217.2%K%16.2% ° Itk 5 Y38
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6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuead)

(e)

Information about major customers contributing over
10% of total revenue of the Group (Continued)

In addition to the above largest customer, there were
two customers in bedding products segment and two
customers in cotton yarns segment with revenue contributing
approximately RMB252,777,000, RMB248,868,000,
RMB234,871,000 and RMB224,821,000, representing
about 11.8%, 11.6%, 10.9% and 10.5%, respectively,
to the total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013. For the year ended 31 December 2012,
three of those customers in bedding products segment
contributed revenue of approximately RMB344,619,000,
RMB330,267,000 and RMB276,032,000, representing about
14.4%, 13.8% and 11.5%, respectively, to the total revenue
of the Group.

Taifeng Textile Group Company Limited (“TTG”) was a
customer of the Group in manufacturing and distribution
of cotton yarns segment, contributed sales of cotton
yarns products of approximately RMB370,440,000 (2012:
RMB252,615,000), representing about 17.2% (2012:
10.5%) of the revenue of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2013. TTG has been a textile enterprise
incorporated in PRC since 2001. It is principally engaged in
the trading of cotton and manufacturing and sales of fabrics.
Before the reorganisation process of the Group for its
listing in 2010, TTG and the Group had common controlling
shareholders and common directors including the Chairman
of the Company, Mr. Liu Qingping. As such, TTG was
regarded as a related party. As part of the reorganisation,
the above-mentioned common controlling shareholders had
disposed of their entire interests in TTG to independent third
parties. In addition, Mr. Liu and other common directors had
resigned as directors of TTG by 7 July 2009.
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6.

WK RBER (&)

(e)

BARAXEERSARSEREB10%2
TREFEN(B)

BrESEREREIN MBKMD EE
FEMERYINBEFPREBEEZT
—=ZF+-_A=t—HILFEZKZ
DREBAEBEREBEEEHHARE
252,777,0007T + A & #248,868,000
7T AR #234,871,0007T & A R ¥
224,821,0007T ' #HEX11.8%11.6%"
10.9%K10.5% EHE T ——F+=
A=T—BLFE Z=-%2RmHHE
FzWEArEERZBEERMOAR
#5344,619,0007T * A K #330,267,000
TR AR #¥276,032,0007T & R
14.4%~13.8% % 11.5% °

FLUOBEEAR AR ([RLH8])
BASBERER D HIRY HEEFR—F
eR= eSS bl = e — B = - —
AIEFEARAESEERIBAHEERA
R#370,440,000c (ZZE—=F: AR
#252,615,0007T ) * 10 & A AN & B Y e
172% (ZF——_F:105%) - L%
BEE T —FREPREMKILZ
Mt E TEREEERCALEE
MEEmM - R_ZE—ZFAEEA L
M#ETEARN  REHBEREBEHES
HRAZEREEERES  BEAQF
ETRIAEFRE B TLHEHE
AEBALT NEABEF it HF
PRI R B R R R E R E R
Lotz 2 E RS b BIEERE
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90

OTHER INCOME

An analysis of the Group’s other income is as follow:

7. HfbWA

AEBEMBAZAITAT

2013 2012
—E-=F —F—=F
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥TTT AR T
Bank interest income SRITH) BUA 6,466 6,212
Loan interest income B3 F B A 3,364 =
Others Efb 290 709
10,120 6,921
OTHER GAINS AND (LOSSES) 8. Hftliz=k (&H#E)
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARB T
Impairment loss recognised in respect of 5t & Ug BR ZHE R 2 Rl (B &5 18
trade receivables (8,259) (10,520)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of i T& T FRIBHER 2 B (B 518
prepayments (1,443) _
Provision for compensation (note 38) BEESBE (HE38) (18,239) =
Provision for inventories written down GFERERE (3,737) =
Net exchange loss (ERN = (490) (380)
Gain on disposal of scrap materials & BE R 2 WS 1,796 1,130
(30,372) (9,770)
FINANCE COSTS 9. HBRA
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT ABRETF T
Interest on: THFBEZHE
Bank and other borrowings wholly BERAFRNEHEER
repayable within five years MITRHEMEE 39,933 16,734
Amount due to a shareholder JEAS — R R EFIE 1,327 1,593
41,260 18,327
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10. FRIEHIRX

2013 2012
—EB-=F —E—F
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥TT ARETF T
Tax charge represents: IEm X IE
Current tax: B EAR I8 -
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) PR EMER
(TeZEPTIEHR]) 116,452 212,796
Withholding tax on dividend from a PRC —EFERBARIRKREZ
subsidiary AR 5,778 9,556
122,230 222,352
Deferred tax (note 28): EERIE (K it28)
Provision on withholding tax from —MHP BB A RRDIK
undistributed profit from a PRC i 2 TR0 B
subsidiary 14,465 24,855
Withholding tax on dividend from —EFERBRARIKREZ
a PRC subsidiary TEIR (5,778) (9,556)
Provision for inventories written down T8 R B T ok FE Y AR SR T
and impairment on R BAEEE
trade receivables (7,330) -
1,357 15,299
123,587 237,651

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group’s income neither arises in, nor is derived from, Hong

Kong.

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC (the “EIT Law”)
and Detailed Implementation Rules of the EIT Law, the standard

tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

AT K B25% ©
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

10. FREHRAX (&)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the FAREBERYEESERSIREMEEKEER
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive BrramA 2 SRR T -
income as follows:
2013 2012
—E—-=F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TTT ARBTF T
Profit before taxation Br 5 B 4 A 421,069 755,727
Tax at PRC EIT rate of 25% R B PEMSHTE25%
AEZHE 105,267 188,932
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for ~ A FFL B 2 2 B iG55 &
tax purpose 3,805 24,021
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BEZIHBAZHIEZE
purpose (7) (850)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ﬂi WRMIBEE R BT E 63 193
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses AR ﬁﬁ R BERZ
previously not recognised Mg E (6) -
Tax effect of withholding tax Hh BB B & Bl R 93 K g A
arising on undistributed profits of FRESRMH 2 HET 2
the PRC subsidiaries 14,465 24,855
Income tax expense FRFRIBER 123,587 237,651
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11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

11. FREF

2013 2012
—EB-=F —E—_F
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥T T ARETF T
Profit for the year has been arrived FARRFEMBRUATIER :
at after charging:
Directors’ emoluments (note 12) BEEME (HiE12) 4,566 4,846
Other staff salaries and benefits HM B ITHE REF 115,425 112,222
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, R K48 Fll 5+ 2] £ 7%
excluding those of directors (TERIEREEEL ZHF) 4,373 3,590
Total staff costs #E TR 124,364 120,658
Auditor’s remuneration % S B B <&
Current year ANE 1,233 2,293
Under provided in prior year NEFERETR 364 =
1,597 2,293
Net exchange loss M 5 518 490 380
Depreciation of property, VI BB KRBT E
plant and equipment 46,978 45,654
Release of prepaid lease payments FEBRTET AR E IR 178 178
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME BEREKEZEE
equipment 341 -
Cost of inventories recognised as BRAEAX CFEEKAR
an expense 1,520,030 1,451,579
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12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND EMPLOYEES’

94

EMOLUMENTS

Directors

Details of the emoluments paid to the directors and the chief
executive of the Group for the years are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2013

12. EE - THHARREEFHH

E=x

MEFERENTAKEES RITHRAEZ
MesEBmT:

BE_2-=F+-"A=t—-RHLHFE

Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme  Share-based
Fees allowances contributions payment Total
ek BRAER
re Hitn2a TEMRY ROSREX @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETHT AREFn AREFT AREFZ
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Liu Qingping AEFLE - 1,029 19 - 1,048
Ms. Qi Tongli TREZL - 806 15 - 821
Mr. Liu Chunwei (a) B4 () - 553 10 - 563
Mr. Li Dengxiang FEELE - 806 15 - 821
Mr. Zou Shengzhong (a) FPEBLEQ) - 814 15 - 829
Independent non-executive BYFHITEE:
directors:
Mr. Chan Kin Sang BREEE A 284 - - - 284
Mr. Li Yuchun TEERE 100 - - - 100
Mr. Dai Shunlin MK E 100 - - - 100
484 4,008 74 - 4,566
(@ Mr. Liu Chunwei has resigned the chief executive of the @ BEEHEER=TE—=FLA=+HA

Company since 25 September 2013. On the same date, Mr.
Zou Shengzhong has replaced Mr. Liu Chunwei as the chief
executive of the Company and his emoluments disclosed
above include those for services rendered by him as the
chief executive.

BB R R ZITHARE, - BBED LR
REFEHRERBARR ZITRBE -
MR EXFAHE e BREIERTTR
RERERBZME -
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e R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_FE—=F1+_HA=1+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EE THEARBRRESEMHN (&)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors (Continued) BE=E(£)
Year ended 31 December 2012 BE T —H#+_-_A=+—HItFE
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme Share-based
Fees allowances  contributions payment Total
Hek RIKREF
e H 28 FEER ROGHEX Bt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABETTE  ARETET  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT

Executive directors: HTES:

Mr. Liu Qingping AETEAE - 1,029 18 - 1,047
Ms. Qi Tongli TREBXT - 806 14 - 820
Mr. Liu Chunwei Byt - 830 14 - 844
Mr. Li Dengxiang FEHEE - 806 14 - 820
Mr. Zou Shengzhong PEBELE - 806 14 - 820

Independent non-executive B FHTES:

directors:
Mr. Chan Kin Sang B LS4 295 - - - 295
Mr. Li Yuchun FIERE 100 = = = 100
Mr. Dai Shunlin B IEM L E 100 = = - 100

495 4,277 74 = 4,846
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12.

96

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Employees

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the five highest paid
individuals of the Group included four executive directors (2012:
four executive directors). The remuneration of the remaining one
individual for the year ended 31 December 2013 is as follows:

12. EX -THRBRESHMN (&)

==

REEZZ—=F+-A=+—HILFE"
AEBRERSFMATEENEHNITE
B(ZZ——F WEHTES) HE-ZT
—=ZF+-_A=+—BLFE #T—2A
T2 EHMIT

2013 2012

—E—=5 —E——%F

RMB’000 RMB 000

ARETFT AR For

Salaries and other allowances ok E A )RR 638 1,000
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RKTE ) ET B R 8 =
646 1,000

Their emoluments paid by the Group are within the following
bands:

tHEEZMEN FTIIEE:

Number of the five highest
paid individuals

2013 2012
—g—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT AR For
Nil-HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to Z 3% 7t- 1,000,000/% 7T

RMB787,950) (HHEMARET87,9507T) 1 =

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,0015% 7c— 1,500,0007% 7T
(equivalent to RMB1,181,925) (FHERAR1,181,9257T) - 1
1 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of the directors or the five highest paid individuals (including
directors and employees) as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of
the directors waived any emoluments during both years.

RER AEBYERETAEEHAERS
FMAL (BREFTLES) NS ER
REIRFINBEHINARE B 2 e SRR
E-NMEFER W EEEHEWEEMR
Al
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE—_F—=—F1+_-_HA=+—HIFFE

13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE
2013 2012
—EB—=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR FIT AREFIT
Dividend recognised as distributions FABRRBD IR ZIRE
during the year = =
2013 Interim - nil (2012: 2012 Interim, ni) —ZT— =4F A&
T4
T CZFHH &)
2012 Final, paid - RMB0.052 per share T —HERHEN-EFR
(2012: 2011 Final, paid RMB0.086 per ARB0.052TT (ZE— =%
share) —E——FREENER
AR #0.0867T) 52,000 86,000
52,000 86,000

In accordance with the voting results for the annual general
meeting on 21 June 2013, the Board declared a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2012 of RMB52,000,000 with
RMBO0.052 per share to the shareholders on the Register of
Members of the Company on 26 July 2013.

The Board does not recommend payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2013.

14. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

BERA-E—=F A -+ HBT2KE
BAEREZRELR EFCRN_2—=
FLAZ+NBRIARQRIRERMZARE
ERBEZT——F+_HA=+—HLFE
Z AR BB ARE0.052T A AR
52,000,0007T °

EEe fERARBEE_ZT—=F+_H
=+ HIFEEZREKS -

14. SREXREBEER

A AFEA AR SR EARF TN TE
Bt

2013 2012
—_=2—= =B ==n=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®Tor
Profit for the year attributable to KRREE AL FE AN R T

owners of the Company 297,482 518,076
‘000 ‘000
TR TR

Number of ordinary shares for the purpose  Fhat & &I E A & 7| 2 3@ A% A%
of basic earnings per share k4= 1,000,000 1,000,000

The diluted earnings per share is same as basic earnings per
share for both years as there were no potential dilutive ordinary
shares in issue.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_E—=FF+_A=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. 1% BERRE

Plant and Office Motor
Buildings equipment equipment vehicles Total
BF BRERZE WARE AE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT
COST B
At 1 January 2012 NEZE—=&—H—H 114,341 627,466 4,981 1,721 748,509
Additions Il - - 321 = 321
At 31 December 2012 and AZF—Z&+-A=+-H
1 January 2013 R-—Z-—=%—-F-H 114,341 627,466 5,302 1,721 748,830
Additions Il = 354,896 = = 354,896
Disposal e (247) (615,682) (101) 219) (616,249)
At 31 December 2013 R-E-=F+-A=t-H 114,004 366,680 5,201 1,502 487,477
DEPRECIATION E
At 1 January 2012 N_E——F—Hf—H 16,552 213,593 2,057 357 232,559
Charge for the year FREE 3,722 40,989 525 318 45,554
At 31 December 2012 and R-E——F+-A=1—H
1 January 2013 k-—ZT-—=%—H—H 20,274 254,582 2,582 675 278,113
Charge for the year FREE 3,721 42,528 447 282 46,978
Disposal HE = (262,750) = 92) (262,842)
At 31 December 2013 R=ZZ-=f+=A=+-H 23,995 34,360 3,029 865 62,249
CARRYING VALUES RHE
At 31 December 2013 R-Z-=%+-A=+-H 90,099 332,320 2,172 637 425,228
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=A=+—H 94,067 372,884 2,720 1,046 470,717

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the following numbers of

years:
Buildings 15 - 30 years
Plant and equipment 5-15 years
Office equipment 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 10 years

Lt - BB KR EE B 5 NI F B

BEREEGFEFE:

BF

B Bk
BB

JTEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE—F——FF+ A=+ HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

16.

17.

As at 31 December 2013, the carrying value of manufacturing
equipment under plant and equipment includes an amount of
approximately RMB329,839,000 in respect of assets held under
finance lease.

Included in buildings, a carrying value of RMB37,428,000 (2012:

RMB38,992,000) is secured to bank to obtain banking facilities to
the Group (note 34).

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

15. ¥ -BMERRK®HE (&)

R-_E—=F+-_A=+—"H BEEXHE
MEEEERERMEREE THNEERBEESRE
#) A\ R #£329,839,0007T °

N5 B BR T F(E 4 A R 137,428,000t (=
T——4F: AR#¥38,992,0007T) ZEFEIE
WIE BN F34FTH B AL E TR — RIRI TR
BRHEEZER

16. ENHEERE

2013 2012
—E—-=F —od=—GF
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR T ARETF T
Prepaid lease payments comprise: FENHEERIBERE:
Leasehold land in the PRC under REFHHEERFRFE 2
medium-term lease HELH 7,103 7,281
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HBMEIEH 2D
Current assets MBEE 178 178
Non-current assets IEREEE 6,925 7,103
7,103 7,281

The prepaid lease payment is amortised over the lease terms of
the rights on a straight-line basis of 50 years. As at 31 December
2013, included in prepaid lease payment, a carrying value of
RMB7,103,000 (2012: RMB7,281,000) is secured to obtain
banking facilities of the Group (note 34).

DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF LAND USE RIGHTS
AND BUILDINGS

Shandong Taifeng entered into an acquisition agreement on
19 November 2010 with TTG, pursuant to which Shandong
Taifeng agreed to acquire from TTG certain land use rights and
buildings for production purposes, for a cash consideration of
RMB68,800,000 in accordance with a valuation report from an
independent valuer, Jones Lang Lasalle Sallmanns Limited.

On the same date, Shandong Taifeng had also entered into a
supplemental agreement with TTG to reduce the original lease
area and the monthly rental in respect of an existing lease
agreement.
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$EIEEE)$@%7/\E¢§71030007:
—T——4F: AR¥7,281,0005T) 2 BT
EREDIRIFIE BN F34FT B AL B FTE
—RIBITREEE ZER

17. BALERERBFZENES

WRFEEFLHB/BN _—_T—FF+—H
TH BRI — TR ik TFJlt I RZEE A
ERBBY(HERM P ERHITE L 2 HERS
LA A R #68,800,0007T 2 B & KB RIZRE 4
BBEAETIHERRERET IMMEEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
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17. DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF LAND USE RIGHTS 17. BALHFERAEREFZ2ENHEZESE

100

AND BUILDINGS (Continued)

A refundable deposit of RMB61,920,000 was paid by Shandong
Taifeng to TTG in prior year. The acquisition, subject to relevant
local authority approval, has not yet completed as at the date
when these consolidated financial statements are authorised for
issue, due to unexpected delay in the processing time of local
government official. Nevertheless, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the Group will be able to complete the
acquisition in due course.

The remaining unpaid amount of RMB6,880,000 has been
disclosed in note 37 as capital commitment.

18. TRADEMARK

The trademark represents brand name of “TAIFENG” and its logo,
which was acquired during the year ended 31 December 2009 at
its fair value of RMB6,934,000 in accordance with the valuation
report from an independent valuer, it R £ & EEFEERE
£/ d]. The trademark has a legal life of 10 years expiring in May
2019, but is renewable every 10 years at minimal cost.

The directors of the Group are of the opinion that the upkeep of
the trademark is at minimal cost and the Group would be able
to renew the trademark continuously and has the ability to do
so. Various studies including product life cycle studies, market,
competitiveness and environmental trends, and brand extension
opportunities have been performed by management of the
Group, which supports that the trademark has no foreseeable
limit to its legal life of 10 years expiring at May 2019 and the
trademark products are expected to generate net cash inflows
for the Group.

As a result, the trademark is considered as having an indefinite
useful life and is not amortised. Instead, it will be tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that it
may be impaired.

The trademark has been allocated to the bedding cash-
generating unit for impairment testing.

18.

(%)

IWRFEEREFRRENHBEITARE
61,920,000 T AR B2 % o WL IR » 7815 3
BN EEEFIE  BEER Z N
BRIERF IR R - X S B 7S 3R R L T B
BENATEK ARAEEREAEEEA
BE RN B T SRR A BE o

KT EAEE A R #6,880,0007T 2 M T3 7 B2
VBB A RIE o

L

RIZE I RE | 2 REEBREEZRE IR
HE_ZZNWF+_A=+—HLEFER"
EBMAEMIERRESEEETFHERE
FRARBEHZHERSAHLATFEARE
6,934,000l g - IB 2 BEF A TG
REZZE—NAFRAZH HE+FAIUED
ZERASE-

AEEEERR ERRZHERDGELZ
ER AEESEEYHENEERR AK
BEEBECETZRAME BREMSHE
HIETE - 135 MFRRBBE - UL mEHR
R ARAMAIELURBER_ZT—A
FHANPZ TFREFHRAL BRI 2R
# WEHARERAISARESHFRS
A ©

it AEEERER R BRAERAEA
FH WG TIAEE - AT BRHEFER
SORAEAIB - A R R BB R &R B A 7T R
ARBE-_T—=F+_HA=+—HILF
B AEBEEBRR/EERAEAFH
Z PR R (E o

EBRRCOREERARBEELEBN -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE—_F—=—F1+_-_HA=+—HIFFE

17. DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF LAND USE RIGHTS

19.

20.

AND BUILDINGS (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the bedding cash-generating unit are
determined from value-in-use calculations. The key assumptions
for the value-in-use calculations of the bedding cash-generating AEER BRNEEE
unit are those regarding the discount rate and growth rate. The
Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
budgets of 5 years and extrapolates cash flows for the following
five years with a growth rate of 5% per annum assuming the

(&

17. BATHEREREBFZENES

ReESBU s MR AEREER
BEhAEE -EtEARASELEEUNE

AEFEXRRIE

EHNRR - AEERBRIAFNHBEESE
RERBREREE FARERTRENBEER
FERERFRE  BIERE A5% W IAF
BI2013F BN A EREERESEE |

existing level of sales and production remaining the same and IRERT 7% RMEEHSEBRAFNRE
a discount rate of 7.7% per annum which was benchmarked to e
Gross Domestic Product growth rate of China for year 2013.
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 19. AIEHERE
Available-for-sale investment comprises: AIHEHERERE:
2013 2012
—E—=F Zod=—AE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKFT ARKFIT
Listed investment: ERE:
Equity security listed in Hong Kong REB LT 2 RAE S 6,614 6,614
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MBEMS OB :
Non-current assets EMENE E 6,614 6,614
DEFERRED EXPENSES 20. EEXH
2013 2012
—E—=F ==—rs
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARKEFIT
Loss on sale and finance leaseback ERHERR S EE 11,199 =
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HMEEL 22T
Current assets (note 22) MEBE (Kat22) 2,584 -
Non-current assets EMBEE 8,615 -
11,199 =

The Group entered into sale and finance leaseback transaction

with an independent third party under finance lease. The AR GRELAMERE -
loss is deferred and amortised over the lease terms of the BREBEEEAR# S -

manufacturing equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_E—=FF+_A=+—HIFE

21. INVENTORIES 21. &&
2013 2012
—E-=F —F—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARMT T

At cost b:9 7 N

Raw materials JR M K 14,564 19,596
Work-in-progress £ & 24,110 31,744
Finished goods LYK o 33,077 35,249
71,751 86,589

22.

Included in inventories of RMB14,038,000 (2012:
RMB8,434,000) is secured to bank to obtain banking facilities to

the Group (note 34).

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

FERS N ARK14,038,000T (—ZFE—=
& AR #8,434,0007T) 1E B ANk B A —
RRIRITRVERAE 2 EIR (A77234) -

22, YRR K HE M ERREARENRE

2013 2012

—E-=F —E——F

(Restated)

(#2E )

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR FT AR F T

Trade receivables JE UK BR 53R 445,493 526,492
Less: allowance for doubtful debts R R (25,583) (17,324)
419,910 509,168

Prepayments to suppliers ) 4 P TR ST RO 448,314 511,563
Prepayments for operating expenses KR B ST TR SROR 20,321 54,601
Other receivables H i & IR IE 93,950 1,365
Loan receivables FE UL fE 3R 480,100 =
Deferred expenses (note 20) RIES I (H72220) 2,584 =
1,465,179 1,076,697

Included in the trade receivables is an amount of
RMB94,066,000 (2012: RMB61,307,000) from TTG, which was
one of the top five customers of the Group. Further details are
disclosed in note 6(e).

JEUER R B IEREN LS (AEBREAR
P2Z—) ZBRAK AR 066,000 (==
— Z—fF: ARM61,307,0007T) o #E— 15

PP FE6(e) 1 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE—_F—=—F1+_-_HA=+—HIFFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS 22, EWIRA R HAth FEWFRIE LA R FE(F KB

(Continued)

Included in the prepayments to suppliers are prepayments of
RMB30,140,000 to TTG for purchasing cottons, in which bills
of RMB30,000,000 were issued to TTG before 31 December
2013. The bills will mature in July 2014 and the raw materials are
expected to be delivered from February to August 2014. TTG,
which was also the largest supplier of the Group in manufacturing
and distribution of cotton yarns segment, contributed purchases
of cottons of RMB370,905,000 (2012: RMB227,407,000),
representing about 31.0% (2012: 17.9%) of the total purchases
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Loan receivables represented short-term loans to TTG and
Shandong Laiwu Fengze Textile Co., Ltd (1L 5 3 % L2 2 4
# B PR AA) of RMB237,000,000 and RMB243,100,000
respectively. These companies were incorporated in the PRC and
independent third parties to the Group. Such loans bore interest
at 6.9% for 6-month and the former was unsecured and the
latter was secured by its inventories whereas the principal and
interest thereon will mature on 15 June 2014 and 11 June 2014,
respectively.

Apart from the cash sales from its retail business, the Group
generally allows an average credit period of 30 to 120 days to
its trade customers. The aged analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) presented based
on the invoice dates at the end of the reporting period, which
approximated the respective revenue recognition dates is as
follows:

(#&)

MEEREN 2 RBEERRBRTASR
B4 &% T8 1 2 3B A R 30,140,000 * A%
SEER=-ZE—=F+=-_A=+—HmH
I 1) 2= 2 4 4 B I BB A R #5380,000,000
ToZEZEBER-_ZT—NFEL AR R
MEEHRN —_E—mHE- A \AXfto
REGBNARNEBRERDHRY DI
2RAEER REE-_Z—=F+=-7
—t+—ALtFEAAEBEERRIEEER
AR #370,905,0000t (ZZE——F: AR
#227,407,0007T)  HHE M 42 #E HE31.0%
ZE—F:17.9%) °

AR AR LERRILRRKEL2H
BERARIREMEEEN SEIIABAR
#237,000,0007T F1 A & #243,100,0007T °
ZEQNANPEEMANY YAEER 2B
FE=h ZEEREEFFEF XY E6.9E -
A& BEIRIT  BERZARNTFEERR
MIBER (AeRFE)DRIN =T —HEFx
A+RBE=-ZFT—MFE~A+—BFH-

BRAREBETEXEHBZRSHEN AEE—
RETHESEFI0E120R 2 FHEER-
RSB e WAR AR (0B RER B M) 10 3 45 B
RAEERERNER A (RKRSHER A B
)2z REDHTAT :

2013 2012
—EB—-=F =E—T1t=
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR For ARETF T

Trade receivables JE U AR 3R :
0 - 30 days 0% 30H 87,425 136,497
31 - 60 days 31260H 111,184 171,193
61 — 90 days 61%£90H 77,161 94,676
91 - 180 days 91%2180H 75,753 89,204
Over 180 days H#i®m180H 68,387 17,598
419,910 509,168
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS
(Continued)

22.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines its credit limits
based on results from investigation of historical credit records of
these customers. Majority of trade receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired have no default payment history. It is the
Group’s policy to make provision against debts which normally
aged over 90 days, except for some specific customers granted
with longer credit period, because historical experience is such
that receivables that are past due beyond 90 days are generally
not recoverable.

However, included in the Group’s trade receivables are debtors
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB144,140,000 (2012:
RMB24,562,000) which were past due at the end of the reporting
date but for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss, as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
of the relevant customers and the Group believes that the
amounts are still recoverable as there are subsequent settlement.
The Group does not hold any collateral over the above balances.

Aging (based on the invoice date) of trade receivables which are
past due but not impaired:

FE WA RR R B L A B R IR DA R LAY TR
(#&)

AEEZREMNHELHETEZEERTP
ZEEER UYRBHZEEFPBERFERL
B AERERREEERTE - KA KRB H
BARBEZ BURERFCRE S B\ RS &
SEZBRABRE TERBRREENZEE
BEPIN BERRKEROR 2 BB
B RRSBEERBREER0R k&
Wk IR B E A e -

=h

R AEEZBURFFEEAREEA
R 144,140,000 (ZE—ZF: AR®
24,562,0007T ) Z FEWF - 2 EHRIERME B
HE @ - EAEEI AR E RSB RE
REABBEFP 2 EEERTEERNE L
MEREZERIER AEEINEEIEE
I ATURE - ANEE I EFE Ea A srtE A
EREE:EEr

ERMEREEZ EBREFRR (ERER
B :

2013 2012
—E—=5 —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFor
91 - 180 days 91£180H 75,753 6,964
Over 180 days HBi®m180H 68,387 17,598
144,140 24,562
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts of trade FEUBER RTEN RIBERERE 22 -
receivables and prepayments.
2013 2012
—g—= —E—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARB T
Balance at beginning of the year F AR 17,324 6,804
Impairment loss recognised in respect of BTN FAIA MR 2 B (B &5 18
prepayments 1,443 _
Impairment loss recognised on trade PIEWRER 2R EEE
receivables 8,259 10,520
Balance at end of the year F R4 o4 27,026 17,324
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS
(Continued)

Included in trade and other receivables as at 31 December 2013
are amounts of RMB18,024,000 and RMB69,000 denominated
in United States Dollars (‘US$”) and HKS$, respectively, which
were other than the functional currency of the respective group
entities. As at 31 December 2012, there were approximately
RMB17,790,000 and RMB69,000 denominated in US$ and HKS,
respectively.

23. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at variable rates as follows:

22,

23.

FE W RR R B L At B WK IR DA R ALY RRE
(%)

RZB—=F+-A=+—8 EREXR
H b fEWGRIA 5 BB £ A R #518,024,0007T
& AR ¥69,000t AETT ([ZET]) BB T
(WHEEEBB 2 IEES ) FHEZHIA
R-B——F+-A=+—8 2RBEHA
R #17,790,0007T & A R #69,0007T JA 3£ 7T
MABITTHEZ A -

BEEARTER RITEHRES
RITHEBRIRTIFBF X E

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F

Range of interest rates per annum FHEHE

Pledged bank deposits mainly represent deposits pledged
to banks to secure the bills of RMB62,000,000 (2012:
RMB182,000,000).

The pledged bank deposits of the Group carrying fixed interest
rates at the following various interest rates per annum:

0.01% to 0.350%  0.01% to 0.385%
0.01£%0.350E2 0.012 £0.385E

EHHRTEREEREAN - —=F
+=—A=+—Ha1% L 2 AR ¥62,000,000
gE (= — = 4k ¢\ R ESTE2 {000 0005 ) =2
B2 BB FRITZFR e

AR B EFIRITFFIZ NI R EE S H

Rt 8

2013 2012
—EB—=F ===t

Interest rates per annum £ FI| R

Annual Report 2013 £ ¥

0.01% to 0.350%  0.01% to 0.385%
0.012%0.350E 0.01E%0.3852
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23.

24,

106

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH
(Continued)

Included in the Group’s bank balances is a bank balance
with Laishang Bank Co., Ltd. (“Laishang Bank”), which is
a local commercial bank that is registered in Laiwu City of
Shandong Province and operates in the PRC, amounted to
RMB1,386,557,000 (2012: RMB1,204,439,000) that carries an
interest of 0.350% per annum (2012: 0.385% per annum). Based
on the records of Laishang Bank, the Chairman of the Company,
Mr. Liu Qingping, is one of the 14 directors of Laishang Bank
as at 31 December 2012. Mr. Liu has declared that he does not
hold any equity interest in the bank, and has tendered resignation
of directorship in March 2010. In March 2013, the bank has
issued a confirmation stating that the resignation of Mr. Liu was
approved and Mr. Liu has formally resigned the director of the
Laishang Bank. Further details in relation to the Group’s credit
risk are disclosed in note 39(b).

Included in bank balances and pledged bank deposits as at
31 December 2013, which were approximately RMB20,000
and RMB211,000 denominated in US$ and HK$, respectively,
other than the functional currency of the respective group
entities (2012: Approximately RMB117,000 and RMB1,093,000
denominated in US$ and HK$ respectively).

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

The analysis of the trade and other payables and accruals of the
Group is as follow:

23.

24.

BEEARTER RITEHRAS
(#&)

REBIRTTE S E ARKA1,386,557,00070

—T——F: AR¥1,204,439,0007T) 1A
RERITROBRA A ([FHEET] Rl
REREM ML AR BLLE 25 EE
T)ZBRITHEBRIRFFER0I0E (=T —=
& FFIE0.385E ) 5T B - IRIEHHIRTT 250
BRI F ARQAERIAETEE
BRBRTIVBESZ — 2L EB &R
WA EEEZITEMRE FER=Z—F
FZAREBIEERE - R — ==
B 2B HERE KRB EEZHEDE
HE-BEEAEEEERRZE—THFER
B 5E39(b) 1% 57 o

RZE—=F+_F=+—H RTE8K
BRI RITERF 2 5B 49 A R#20,0007T
& A R #211,0007T A 3 7T K 78 7T (37 3E 48
HEBERNEEE)FEZRE(ZE
——F Y ARBEN17,000CAET R AR
1,093,0007T LA/B TTEHE) °

BARAREMENRREARESE A

ARG 2 AN R SR L b 8 A5 R TR DA S JE At
BRI

2013 2012

—E-=5F —=E—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFor
Trade payables FETBR K 54,493 85,611
Bills payables ERER® 62,000 182,000
Accruals Esr&HA 115,955 82,016
Receipts in advance FE UL FRIE 17,238 12,108
Other tax payables H b SRR 26,461 21,154
Others Hith 78,016 35,489
354,163 418,373
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24,

25.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(Continued)

The aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

24,

AR REMENRBEARESEA
(#&)

AEERBERHEEAERERBH 2
MERRERE DT T -

2013 2012

—E—-=F —ET——%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR T

0 - 30 days 0£30H 33,788 29,963
31 - 60 days 31£260H 741 3,692
61 — 90 days 61290H 283 17,428
91 - 180 days 91£180H 659 13,939
Over 180 days H#imH180H 19,022 20,589
54,493 85,611

All bills payables of the Group are aged between 91 to 180 days
and are not yet due at the end of the reporting period.

Included in trade and other payables and accruals as at 31
December 2013 were approximately RMB5,584,000 and
RMB10,208,000 denominated in US$ and HKS$, which were
other than the functional currency of the respective group
entities. There were approximately RMB29,286,000 and
RMB5,199,000 denominated in US$ and HK$, other than the
functional currency of the respective group entities as at 31
December 2012.

AMOUNT DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER

The amount due to a shareholder represents an amount
of HK$32,000,000, which is equivalent to approximately
RMB27,200,000 (2012: HK$32,000,000, which is equivalent to
approximately RMB27,200,000) advanced by Harvest Sun to
the Group and carries fixed interest at the rate of 5.25% (2012:
5.25%) per annum and repayable, renewable within one year.

Annual Report 2013 £ ¥

25.

AEBMERNER ZRERHEIN TI91E180
B RREHEEE RSN ARRIE-

R-B—=F+-A=+—08 ENEZXR
HtmEMNZREARBTEBATSRBEHAR
#%5,584,0007T & A K #10,208,0007T LAZE TT
RABT(WESEBER ZINEEE)FTEZ
RO e e e e e e = R |
HH AR #29,286,0007T & A K #5,199,000
TTAETRBT (THESEBEERZ2IEE
#) EHE 2 FUIE

P — BRRKE

BN —2BRERBEERR2NTAEE
2 —%32,000,000 7 (HHERH AR
27,200,0007T) (=% — =4 : 32,000,000
Bt (HERH AR27,200,0007T) ) &K
H-BEEFMNEASBE(ZE——F:525
E) WA —FREFHET-
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26. BANK BORROWINGS

26. RITEEHE

2013 2012
—E—=5F ===
(Restated)
(#ZE )
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR FT
Bank borrowings IRITER 428,100 316,100
Analysed as: DA
Secured AR 50,000 50,000
Unsecured i 378,100 266,100
428,100 316,100
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings ~ ANEEEEMT
are as follows:
Fixed-rate borrowings EEEBE 378,100 311,100
Variable-rate borrowings FEEE 50,000 5,000
428,100 316,100

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) of the Group’s borrowings are as

follows:

AEBEEZERME (BEREFTHNR)

SEEHHINMT

2013

—_—= =

RMB’000
AR T

2012
—ET—-—4F
(Restated)
(#EZEZ)
RMB’000
AT T

Fixed-rate borrowings

Variable-rate borrowings

Denominated in:

RMB

108

AT B EHE -
AR

6.72% to 7.80%
per annum
FR=H

6.72EZ £7.80E

100% of 1-year
benchmark
lending rate of
the People’s
Bank of China
FEARET
—FHEMEE
FIZE Z100%

428,100

6.00% to 7.80%
per annum
FRR

6.002 £7.80/2

120% of 1-year
benchmark
lending rate of
the People’s
Bank of China
FEARRIT
—FHIE A%
F&E2120%

316,100
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26. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 26. BITEE (42)

PAEEDANBEFEAE AL —FR

All borrowings are repayable within one year from the end

of the reporting year except for RMB30,000,000 (2012:
RMB30,000,000) which are repayable on demand due to the
breach of loan covenants (see the note below for details).

The effective interest rates for the bank borrowings are 6.87%
and 7.00% per annum as at 31 December 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Included in the above bank borrowings are unsecured borrowings
of RMB48,000,000 from Laishang Bank that carry interest at a

B2 1 AR%30,000,0007T (=T — 4
A R #30,000,00070) AR EREER#HE
RERFEE (FEBL2E T XM -

R-_E—=FR_FT——F+-_A=+—H
ZIRITEEEBRFFE S R A6.87E &7.00
EQ

FHSRITIE B B IR R B R R 1T 2 AR S
B AR #48,000,0007T * 1% & E F 7| K7 .8E

fixed rate of 7.8% per annum. The borrowings will mature on HE-ZEEEBERN_ZT—NWENLAFE-
September 2014. Further details are disclosed in note 39(b). #E— S ER KT E39(D) 1 55 o

2013 2012
—E—=F == —4E
(Restateq)
(A5 EZ1)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T ARKFIT
Unsecured bank borrowings BRUATE G ER EEART
guaranteed by: BE:
REREYMEEEZBRAT RERBHMEEESBRAR
(IHERH]) ([FRERE]) 48,000 48,000
IWE S HEREERAQA] LWERBHEEEFRAR
(MUREME]) (MURE™ME]) 111,600 -
RERERERERBERAF REREKERERERQF
([REHE]) ([REEKEE]) 50,000 =
TTG REGR 84,730 111,600
Mr. Liu Qingping BT LA 50,000 -

HeamZrE, ||REBE, FEK Eand TTG are independent third FeAE IR || B AT R L
parties. RS IR

Note:  Approximately RMB30,000,000 (2012: RMB30,000,000) of Kit: RZZE—=F+-—A=+—H HREHE
the Group’s bank borrowings as at 31 December 2013 are BRTEERZ AEBETEEES
required to be secured by certain inventories of approximately #4) A R #30,000,000c (Z&FE— 4
RMB44,795,000 (2012: RMB50,222,000) pursuant to AR #30,000,000t) FEUDHAR
relevant bank borrowing agreements. However, as at 31 B44,795,000C (ZE——F: ARK
December 2013, the carrying amount of the relevant pledged 50,222,000t ) 2 &5 T EEEAKIF-
inventories was only approximately RMB14,038,000 (2012: A R-_BE—=F+=-_A=+—8"
RMBS8,434,000), which is lower than the amount required, HECERBREE2EEEEREAOAAR
resulting in these bank borrowings being immediately repayable #14,038,000L (Z T —Z—F: AR¥
due to their breach of covenants. These bank borrowings have 8,434,0007T) " RIS €5 B ZE

been presented in the earliest time band in the liquidity table in IRITEEEARNERRFRNGEE -ZZ
note 39(b). RITEERIAM L) REE €&
FREZRRA-
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27. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE

The Group leased certain of its manufacturing equipment under
sale and finance leaseback agreement. The lease term is 5 years.
At the end of the lease period of the Finance Lease Contract,
the Group will have the right to purchase the Equipment at a
nominal purchase price of RMB100. The Group’s obligations
under finance leases are secured by a refundable lease guarantee
deposit of RMB27,000,000. Furthermore, Mr. Liu Qingping and
his wife, as well as each of the other directors of Shandong
Taifeng, namely Mr. Li Dengxiang, Ms. Qi Tongli, Mr. Liu Chunwei
and Mr. Zou Shengzhong, have provided joint and several
unlimited personal guarantee in favour of CDB Leasing Co., Ltd
(RIE LR AEER 2 F) on the performance of the obligations
of Shandong Taifeng under the Finance Lease Arrangement.

Interest rate under all obligations under finance lease are variable
at 90 basis points over the 3 to 5 year base lending rate of the
People’s Bank of China, which if based on the rate of 6.4%
per annum on the date of the execution of the Finance Lease

Contract, will be 7.3% per annum.

Minimum lease payments

27.

MEHERE

AEENLERBEREQE AR N
SLERE -ZHER/BES NHEHRAR
& AEEARRSBABEEARE100T
BEZSRE-TREHERBESHARK
27,000,0007C {E A A SR B 2 i & FH B AR R
HGm - R BIEFRERERA  ERE
fIRFE 2 ES BREFERELE TRE
Tt BHEEERBLERREREBSE
ERMNEARETHERSREEAR AR
ERILRFTEREMELVEFTRITZAE-

MEMEARE THHENE REFEAR
RIT M2 =2 AFHMEERFEF X 0ME
HEFE WERNBEHEANELARZ
FHEE.4%E B BEBF7.3% -

Present value of
minimum lease payments

MEHESE MEHEEERE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E—CfF —E-=F —E—CfF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ABETT ARETT AREFT AR T
Not later than one year —FR 61,742 = 40,000 =
Later than one year and B FETEARE
not later than five years 88,159 - 70,000 -
Later than five years Tk 219,344 - 200,000 -
369,245 - 310,000 -
Less: future finance charges B BERE 2 RRE
BHX (59,245) = = -
Present value of minimum lease RMEMREEEHE
payments 310,000 - 310,000 =
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27. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE (Continued)

27. MERERE (&)

28.

2013 2012
—E—-=F —ET——%F
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARB¥TFTT AR T
Included in the consolidated financial RERE T EREA

statements as:
Current liabilities mENEE 40,000 =
Non-current liabilities EREasE 270,000 =
310,000 -

DEFERRED TAX

The following table shows the major deferred tax liabilities
(assets) recognised by the Group and movements thereon during

the current and prior years:

28. EALERIE

TRITARERANFE MR EFEHER
TRRERBARE(BE) REE:

Undistributed

earnings of

PRC’s

Allowance on subsidiaries

Allowance on trade  from 1 January
inventories receivables 2008 Total

R A R

B=%8N\F

—A-H&z
FERE PE U BR R 5 £ RO KEF st
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFr AREFr ARKEFT
At 1 January 2012 =2 —=—tE=JF—= (2,699) - 31,132 28,433
Charge to profit or loss ks - - 24,855 24,855
Credit to profit or loss FABE - - (9,556) (9,556)

At 31 December 2012 and RZE—ZF
1 January 2013 T=F ===
—T—=%—-A—H (2,699) - 46,431 43,732
Charge to profit or loss mess - - 14,465 14,465
Credit to profit or loss FFAEE (934) (6,396) (5,778) (13,108)
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=%F

+=ESar—E (3,633) (6,396) 55,118 45,089

Annual Report 2013 £ ¥
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28. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) FEIERLIE (&)

112 China Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited # B 2

The following table is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

TRARBBREMEZBELEHALRD
#r

2013 2012
—E-=4 —T—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AR For

Deferred tax assets R IAE E 10,029 2,699
Deferred tax liabilities FEERRIEE E (55,118) (46,431)
(45,089) (43,732)

Deferred tax has been provided for allowance on trade
receivables, inventories for the slow moving but not damaged
inventories and withholding tax in respect of the undistributed
profits attributable to the Group as earned by the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries starting from 1 January 2008. Under the New Law,
distribution of such profits to their shareholders outside the PRC
are subject to withholding tax.

The Group has unused tax losses of RMB12,013,000 and
RMB13,689,000 available to offset against future profits at
31 December 2013 and 2012, respectively. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of such tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses of
RMB1,715,000, RMB3,367,000, RMB1,976,000, RMB772,000
and RMB253,000 will expire in 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and
2018 respectively. The remaining tax losses have no expiry date.

BT IR EN BRI EEERBETE
CHERBRASERGASEEFTEMNEA

AIEZZEENF—A—BRIRRZADIK
mﬂZi‘Emﬁ{’Em_Lwﬁﬁéﬁ RIEFTT
5 R BEINE R R 5% v A B S A TE
R o

RZBE—=FR=-FE—=—F+=-HA=+—
A A&ELRBABDARBEBEARK
12,013,000t & A & #13,689,0007T 7] A 1A
AR A F o B A AR RE TERI AR 2K 1 2R -
W EREEAHBSEERECERIBEE -
AR #1,715,0007T + AR #3,367,0007T « A
R #1,976,0007T « A R#772,0007C & AR
#D53, OOOTEZWEJ%%EH‘M%W—T Py
i —E-RFE B RE _T—+FR

— J\E g - %T%RIEJE%EI%J:/%E
/HHO

EIRmEREBR AR
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. B
Number of shares Amount
BB EE &5
RMB
AR
Ordinary shares of RMB0.088 (HK$0.1) FREEARK0.0887T
each: (018 7T) 2 EmA% :
Authorised: JATE
At 1 January 2012, WZZE——F—H—R-
31 December 2012 and 2013 —EHERZT-=F
+=-—A=+—8H 1,500,000,000 132,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER:
At 1 January 2012, RWZZE——_F—H—8"
31 December 2012 and 2013 —ECFRIFT-=F
+-—A=+—8H 1,000,000,000 88,000,000
30. SPECIAL RESERVE/PRC GENERAL RESERVE 30. & BIEEEPE—REE
The special reserve relates to Shandong Taifeng and represents HRHER L RREARE M EARNEE
the difference between registered capital and the net assets RN —_ZEZL+F—A—BINEAZEBEZF
contributed by its shareholders prior to 1 January 2007. BERlzE%E-
According to the relevant requirements in the memorandum RI5 A & B A B B A 5] 4B 4% = 72 K40 A AR
of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, a portion of their profits after BT BEEIO BRI E S NERE R
taxation is transferred to PRC general reserve. The transfer to —RHEE cEREEERNEARRERES
this reserve must be made before the distribution of a dividend AD KM ERIEL - —RFEEHEES AT ARNIK
to equity owners. The general reserve fund can be used to offset HEEAFEEER (NE) B8R —KRE
the previous years’ losses, if any. The general reserve fund is EHES T EREDIK-

non-distributable other than upon liquidation.

Annual Report 2013 4F ik 113



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
e = = aE e = JE = =Bl T

31.

32.

114

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT RESERVE/CAPITAL RESERVE

Prior to the completion of a corporate reorganisation in 2009,
Mr. Liu, a director and a shareholder of the Company, acquired
an additional 5.14% equity interest in Shandong Taifeng from
the original shareholders of Shandong Taifeng at a nominal
consideration of US$100 as token of appreciation of his standing
commitment, continuous support and contribution to the Group,
upon the completion of a two-year service as a director of
Shandong Taifeng from 17 April 2009.

The fair value of the additional 5.14% equity interest at the date
of transfer was approximately RMB17,476,000 according to the
valuation report from an independent valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle
Sallmanns Limited. The share-based payment reserve represents
the amount recognised as share-based payment expense which
is calculated with reference to the difference between the above
nominal consideration paid by Mr. Liu and fair value of the shares
at the date of transfer, and is expensed on a straight-line basis
over two years service period commencing 17 April 2009. As no
further share-based payments arose since 2012, no charge to
profit or loss for the current year.

The capital reserve represents the difference between the fair
value of the interest-free advances from shareholders in previous
years and the principal amounts at inception, as adjusted by the
effect of the early repayment.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes administrated by the
local municipal government. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries
contribute funds which are calculated on certain percentage
of the average employee salary as required by local municipal
government to the scheme to fund the retirement benefits
of the employees. The principal obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustee. The Group contributes 5% of
relevant payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution is
matched by employees.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s total
retirement benefit scheme contributions were approximately
RMB4,449,000 (2012: RMB3,664,000).

31.

32.

BRONSRAERERHE

E-_ZTNFZEESATHKA B4 (K
REAEERBERINTZKE _ZTZTNETA
TEHARBHEILURFEEE 2 MFREH
& ARBAREI00XTAILRFEE Z Rk
RERWEB RTINS A4% A - A
B EHARE L FRME S FRIIBRE
& o

REB (HEMPEEITAPMERA AL
ZAEERE  ZFEINS AL % AN RE S N &
HH 2 A FEL AR ARE17,476,0007T © &
MEREEEN2E LA BTES T 2 RE
AREBHEBROREZEA PR ATFEZZ5E5T
5 BRERONFAXIzeE WA ZZTT
NEFEEA+T+tHRMERBHAANAERE
T B2012F 8 ANEE W IR B UK GL
M0 Bl e EakEMEERERSE
EEEALHE-

BARREEEERNBEFEMRER 2 EBR
ZRFERRBRZASER 2 Z8 Wik

2/

RAEBEZFETUHE-

iR K48 7 5T &

RIBHEMEBERIOER  ARBHH B
B EIA2EM Ty TR HETT Y FRUE AR
KT &I - R B H o BIPH B 2 B3R M 75 T B
IR E PR BFHESNET B D LR S
HH - A BB ERABEHENES - AKHE
BREARBN N EZEERREEIE
AT B (AR o

AEBENRRBERAMAERERERZERBHIME
REEFHE - ZAENEERAKEEED
B BRRERABENES - AEB R ZFT
SEH MRS BB EFHF ERANE%  MER
IRBIE R R AR -

BE-_Z—=F+-A=+—HIEE K
S B 2 HEREFELH A ANREEA,449,0007T (=
T——F: AR¥3,664,0007T) °
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33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

U]

(i

(1)

Related party transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following

33. BBMALIRE

I EABALXRS

FRAEEEBHRATETTIR

transactions with related parties: 5
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
Name of related party Relationship Nature of transactions RMB’000 RMB 000
BMBALTER B8 B% REME ARKEFT ARET T
Harvest Sun Substantial shareholder Interest expense
B8 FERF MEFX 1,327 1,378
Liu Qingping Executive director Interest expense
2B WITE=E FERAxX - 215

Related party balance

Details of the balance with a related party are set out in note
25.

Compensation of key management personnel
The emoluments of directors who are also identified as

members of key management of the Group during the year
were as follows:

() BEEEAL4&ER

B— 2 BB A 2 A B IS B I

23 ©

() EEEEASRM

FREZ (ABKRESAEEIRE

BEKE)ZMEWT:

2013 2012

—E—=F =

RMB’000 RMB 000

AR Fo AR F T

Short-term benefits 5 HATE A 4,492 4,772
Post-employment benefit BER: 12 12 7 74 74
4,566 4,846
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34,

35.

116

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were
pledged to banks to secure the Group’s bank borrowings and
bills of RMB62,000,000 before 31 December 2013.

In addition, as required by a bank, the Group needs to
maintain certain inventories at a level at least equal to
approximately RMB44,795,000 and RMB50,222,000 to secure
the relevant bank borrowings as at 31 December 2013 and
2012, respectively. However, as at 31 December 2013, the
carrying amount of the relevant pledged inventories was only
approximately RMB14,038,000 (2012: RMB8,434,000), which
is lower than the amount required, resulting in these bank
borrowings being immediately repayable due to the breach of
borrowing covenants. Further details are disclosed in note 26.

34.

EEERH

RREHEEE R THEEDBEBFRIT
MMEBAEEBZHBITEERR-_Z—=F
+Z A=+—HA1A#AR%62,000,0007T
ZIER IR 2 KA

on - E—RERITER AEER T —=
FR-_E——F+_-_A=Z+—HEEEE
FTHEESAHEFRELHERODARKE
44,795,0007T & A R #50,222,0007T 2 7K
LMERHEBRITERE ZER - Am K=
T—=F+-_A=+—H E@EEREFE
2 EREEELN A ARM14,038,000T (=&
— —4F: AR%8,434,0007T) ERRFIE L
FHOBHZERTEEANEREBERHR
BB B3R o 1 — PR 1B P 5226 %5

2013 2012
—E—=5 —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TTT AR T
Inventories (note 21) FE (#iz21) 14,038 8,434
Bank deposits (note 23) IRITF R (B 3223) 12,400 72,965
Buildings, net book value (note 15) EF (REFE) (Hit15) 37,428 38,992
Leasehold land, net book value (note 16) A& +#b (BREF(E)
(Kiat16) 7,103 7,281
70,969 127,672
OPERATING LEASES 35. KEHE
The Group as lessee NEBEEAEBAA

The minimum lease payments paid under operating leases during
the year.

FARBELEHEX N 2 HERE KA
—FO

2013 2012

—g—= —E—_F

RMB’000 RMB 000

AR¥FT AR For

Premises LS 11,746 12,232
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35. OPERATING LEASES (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments

for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

35.

REBE (#)
FEBEREBA (F)
RBEHREER  AEBERBETAIEHE

EHEN TS BBz R REEBEKIE
EYEMDR

2013 2012

—E—-=F —ET——%F

RMB’000 RMB 000

AR T AREFor

Within one year —FR 11,360 11,962
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFERF (BEEERT) 19,956 27,751
Over five years b cRaksd 45,045 49,245
76,361 88,958

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office premises and production plants.
Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for a period of one to
twenty years.

36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group
companies will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of amount due to a
shareholder disclosed in note 25, bank borrowings disclosed in
note 26, obligations under finance lease disclosed in note 27 and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Group review the capital structure regularly.
As part of this review, the directors consider the cost and the
risks associates with the capital. Based on the recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends and new share issues as well
as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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36.
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AREBZ BN GEE BN E25HE 2 ERT
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37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. EXREE
2013 2012
—E-=4 —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥FT AR For
Capital expenditure in respect of PLUE T AR ETF
the acquisition of land use rights BRI B E ARG A T EHRE
and buildings contracted for but not WEHREHE 2 E AR X
provided in the consolidated
financial statements 6,380 6,880
38. LITIGATION 38. F&d
On 6 March 2013, the Group received an adjudication made by NRZE—=F=A B KAEBWRIHTE

The Shanghai No.2 Intermediate People’s Court. Pursuant to the
adjudication, the Company was ordered to pay Allenberg Cotton
Co. USA (“Allenberg”), damages amounted to US$2,962,000; the
arbitration expenses charged by International Cotton Association
amounted to GBP5,000; and any interest incurred. Furthermore,
the Company was responsible for the court expenses for
RMB86,000.

On 27 November 2013, the Group further received an execution
order issued by The Shanghai No.2 Intermediate People’s Court
for the immediate payment of the above mentioned amount.

In view of the execution order, the Group’s directors are in
the opinion that provision for damages and other related legal
expenses (the “provision amount”) thereof is necessary and
RMB18,239,000 has been provided. Furthermore, an impairment
loss in respect of the prepayment to Allenberg, amounted to
RMB1,443,000, has been made.
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AR fulbﬁ*”"*ﬂtﬂi&/\%ﬂmé’*ﬁ
NREHTEE ZETEHEAEEFTRAN
mERLLA ([XmE])X[12,962,000%
7T - BB AR TE & &Y (& B F3 5,000 85 - 48
F‘ﬁﬂ S RIBEEETEBAEBSFE o« fhoh - K

B EAEREFHTTE R A R%S6,0007T

R-ZFE—Z=F+—A=-+tB A5EKS
REARHK %DIL/E*M*EF'Q&/\E/HE?E
HEITRAM ZRTEANRSLANETX
N EREHR-

RN AEREERBEFTER LMD
FEENLREMABERETRE S8BAA
R #18,239,0007T © 50+ AEBEIE BLA M fw
B ey AR1,443,000 T TE R FAE L BUE
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

39. €@ T A

(@) EWMIAZEH

2013 2012
—EB-=F —E—F
(Restateq)
(#EEZl)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR F ARETF T
Financial assets TREE
Available-for-sale investment AR ERE 6,614 6,614
Loans and receivables (including BERMERGE (BEREE R
cash and cash equivalents) HWEEEY) 2,538,370 1,789,403
Financial liabilities TRARE
Amortised cost B S PR AN 1,114,274 651,908

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investment, trade and other receivables, pledged
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables, amount due to a shareholder and bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
certain of these financial instruments include market risk
(interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose primarily to the market risks
of changes in interests rates and foreign currency exchange
rates (see below).

There has no significant change to the Group’s exposure
to market risks or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risk over the year.

Annual Report 2013 4F ik

(b) MBEBEERBERBE
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

120

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continueq)

Market risk (Continued)

v

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to pledged bank deposits, amount due
to a shareholder and fixed-rate bank borrowings.
In addition, the Group is also exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate
bank balances, pledged bank deposits and bank
borrowings. The Group currently does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk. However, the management will consider
hedgings significant interest rate exposure should the
need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to variable interest rates for
pbank balances in saving accounts of Laishang Bank
which the Group has deposited over 95% (2012: over
90%) of its bank balances at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. A 10 basis
point (2012: 10 basis points) increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2012: 10
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2013 would increase/decrease
by approximately RMB1,083,000 (2012: increase/
decrease by RMB1,156,000).

The directors consider that the exposure to interest
risk on pledged bank deposits and bank borrowings
are insignificant, so there is no sensitivity analysis
presented.

China Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited 2 B2z

30. €FTH(Z)

(b) BEREBEEEEREEK (#)

TEEE (&)
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk

The Group has certain trade and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances, trade and
other payables, amount due to a shareholder and bank
borrowings denominated in foreign currencies, hence
risk exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arise.

The Group has not entered into any foreign exchange
forward contract to hedge against these foreign
currencies risk exposure. However, management of the
Group will consider to hedge these balances should
the need arises.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency

30. @@ T H (&)

(b) BHEABEEEFEREEK (&)

s mEE ()

(i)

B

AEBEFE T ASNEHEZ BUAR
R E A YRR - EERRITE
o SRTTAERR BB FIR - B
—HBRRRBEARRITEE - Bt
FHEHHEXKE AR -

7458 B30 4 9k 0 B LR 2T
ST SN S8 B 40 < SR T - K
SR E AR B B
Ee

ST A

RiE B REBEAINETHEZ

denominated monetary assets at the reporting date is EMEEZEEDENR:
as follows:
2013 2012
—E =5 e 2
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKFT AR
Trade and other receivables JFE MK BR R % EL th B U IR
USs$ EY 18,024 17,790
HK$ BT 69 69
Bank balances and pledged RITHEBR R B ERRITERK
bank deposits
Us$ =TT 20 117
HK$ BT 211 1,093
Trade and other payables JE {1 BR 5% K L tb FE A< 5/ I8
US$ =T 5,584 29,286
HK$ BT 12,208 5,199
Amount due to a shareholder FE — R IR R FIE
HK$ BT 27,200 27,200
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

122

(Continueq)
Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continueq)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to exchange rate
fluctuation on USS$. The following table details the
Group’s sensitivity to a 5% strengthening of RMB
against US$ and HK$. 5% is the rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the possible change in US$ and HKS.
For a 5% weakening of RMB against US$ and HKS$,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
post-tax profit.

30. €FTH(Z)

(b) BEREBEEEEREEK (#)

TEEE (&)

(i) E¥mm (&)
BRREDT
AEBEEXEEHETEXRB 2R
@ TRAMAKBHARKELE

TTRBITLHAES% 2 BREE - 5% 5
NE A EZEEEAB ZMINER
FﬁﬁHthT’ BEBEHETRE

Al e BB 2 FT Al o W AR HE
E&/%EﬁﬂﬁS%?l HBRT 1 3 A
BRERZFZE-

2013 2012
—E—=5 =B==
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥TTT AREFor
Increase in post-tax profit B B4 1% i 138 41 2,860 3,028

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is not necessarily representative of
the inherent foreign exchange risk as the exposure at
the end of the reporting period does not reflect the
exposure during the periods.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. €@ TH (42)

MERABREEEEREE (£)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b)

(Continued)
Credit risk (Continueq)

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s and
the Company’s credit risk are significantly reduced.

As mentioned in note 23, the Group has deposited more
than 95% of its bank balances with Laishang Bank. The
directors of the Company believe that these bank balances
are fully recoverable after considering the financial position
and credit rating of Laishang Bank. Moreover, there is no
special restriction on withdrawal of the balances from the
bank.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with Laishang Bank with high credit ratings,
the Group is also exposed to concentration of credit risk as
a substantial portion of its trade receivables is generated
from a limited number of customers including TTG. As at
31 December 2013, the top ten customers of the Group
which are all located in and carrying on business in PRC
accounted for about 65% (2012: 95%) of the Group’s
trade receivables. These customers are private enterprises
engaged in manufacturing or trading business in textile
industry with no history of default. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the management reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Group consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

124

(Continueq)
Credit risk (Continueq)

The credit risk on prepayments to suppliers is considered
low. These suppliers are private enterprises engaged in
manufacturing or trading business in textile industry with no
history of default.

The credit risk on other receivables is limited given the
financial position of the counter-parties as well as on time
repayment history from the past.

The credit risk in respect of loan receivables is considered
low. Taking into consideration of the financial position of
the counter-parties, the Group’s directors are in the view
that the risk of non-recoverability of the carrying amount is
minimal.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

As set out in note 26, there are breach of covenants for
certain bank borrowings. However, the directors of the
Company believe that these bank borrowing facilities will
continue to be available and will not be withdrawn until the
maturity date.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2013, the Group has
available unutilised bank borrowing facilities of approximately
RMB290,330,000 (31 December 2012: RMB109,605,000),
details of the bank borrowings are set out in note 26.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity table

As at 31 December 2013

30. @I A (£&)

(b) HEREBEZEERERBE (&)

mBELEE (&
REBEEX

R=ZB-—=%+=-A=+—8H

Weighted
average of Repayable Less Total Carrying
contractual on than 1-3 3 months 1year  undiscounted amount at
interest rate demand 1 month months to 1 year to 5 years cash flows 31.12.2013
R-B-=f
mEFH AERRE +tZA=t-H
AHRIR EZRER HSR-MA 1-3f8 A MWAEIE 1E255 REAE ZREE
% RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
% ABETFT ARBTR ARBFR AREFZ AREFT AREFT ARBFT
Trade and other payables  FEI R R E M B T50R - 73,635 90,971 93,223 81,682 9,463 348,974 348,974
Bank borrowings REE
Fixed rate EF% 6.96 - - - 389,499 - 389,499 378,100
Variable rate | 6.18 30,000 - - 20,323 - 50,323 50,000
Amount due to R —BRRFE
a shareholder 5.25 - - - 28,628 - 28,628 27,200
Obligation under BERERE
finance lease 7.30 - - 14,966 46,776 307,503 369,245 310,000
103,635 90,971 108,189 566,908 316,966 1,186,669 1,114,274
Note: The trade and other payables with maturity above one year i HIR A—F A LAY FER BRI N EH b FE

represent parables for renovation expenses.

REARET 2 KIEER -

As at 31 December 2012 i = 2R —mss e o |
Weighted
average of Repayable Less Total Carrying
contractual on than 1-3 3 months 1 year undiscounted amount at
interest rate demand 1 month months to 1 year to 5 years cash flows 31.12.2012
RZZ-=F
METH FERREE tZA=t-8
Yoy EEXER SR—EA 1-318 A RiEVESES 15255 neRE ZEEME
% RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
% AREFTT ANREFTT ANREFT ARETFT AREFT AREFTT AEEFTT
Trade and other payables  [EER S Rt 5B r - 96,646 29,962 182,000 - 308,608 308,608
Bank borrowings REE
Fixed rate (restated) BEfx (#z5)) 6.80 30,000 134,683 - 154,158 = 318,841 311,100
Variable rate LIk 7.20 - - - 5,360 - 5,360 5,000
Amount due to R —BRRFE
a shareholder 5.25 - - - 28,628 - 28,628 27,200
30,000 231,329 29,962 370,146 - 661,437 651,908
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

126

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continueq)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidiity table (Continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised costs in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 based on the
degree to which the fair value is observable. Level 1 fair
value measurements are those derived from quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

30. €FTH(Z)

(b)

(c)

MERBREEEREREE (&)

mEBELER (E)
nEBEEX (B)

AR BB EZEN RS MEEE
AEEZHENXHREZR AIFFAL
MITESRBBZFETAZEER

& 24
-3

AVE

TREERERABIATFEDZRE
BEMAZEBEARBRRESRED
WEEE -

EERR HEVBRENIRBIHKA
AEZEREERERABBZ REER
HAFERSE-

TREANBRERRRAFEFE
VKBABREATFEZREDRFE B
ZEMTRZOM -F—EBRAFEE
TREHAREEXRBBERERTS 2]
B (RBE) -

2013 2012

—E-=5F —E—F

Level 1 Level 1

E—E F—[E

RMB’000 RMB 000

AR¥TTT ARBT T

Available-for-sale investment AHHERE 6,614 6,614

There were no transfers between levels in the current and
prior years.

RAFERBEFERNLERNEE 2
EITER -
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40. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Financial information of the Company at the end of the reporting

period includes:

40. EEARQFAZHMBER

ARBNBEHREERAZHBEER B

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETF T
Assets BE
Investment in a subsidiary —fE B A RKRE 180,007 180,007
Amount due from subsidiaries AN NGO 417,184 420,180
Bank balances IRITHS 187 1,057
Liabilities BfE
Accruals fEETE A (8,723) @,711)
Amount due to a subsidiary B — M B AR FRIB (3,501) (2,727)
585,154 593,806
Capital and reserves BEAR N
Share capital fi&% AR 88,000 88,000
Reserves (note) e (Haz) 497,154 505,806
585,154 593,806
Note: Wit -
Reserves of the Company: KA ZFHEE
Share Merger  Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
B 7 E BOtHEE ESy gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2012 et e — 342,054 180,000 (8,649) 513,405
Profit and total comprehensive income  4F )% A [ 2 U 25 48 58
for the year - - 78,401 78,401
Dividend recognised and BRAEDEKRERZKRE
paid as distribution - - (86,000) (86,000)
At 31 December 2012 and RZE—ZF+=-A=+—8k
1 January 2013 —B—=F£—-—H-H 342,054 180,000 (16,248) 505,806
Profit and total comprehensive income 4 1A% 7 2 2 1 U 25 42 58
for the year - - 43,348 43,348
Dividend recognised and BRESRREMNZRE
paid as distribution - - (52,000) (52,000)
At 31 December 2013 IR=R ==t = EEar—F 342,054 180,000 (24,900) 497,154
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
e = = aE e = JE = =Bl T

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 41. B D B 1E
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2013 and RZE—=FK_ZTE——-F+-_A=+—
2012 are set out below: B TEMBARICFBHINOT :
Held by
Place of Registered the Company %
incorporation/ capital/issued ERAEE%
Name of subsidiary operation share capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
gmER/
il kg SMBY R ERTRA H# Eik TEEH
Yong Xin British Virgin Islands US$1,000 100 = Investment holding
FER ABERES 1,000 7T REZR
Ever Link Creation Limited Hong Kong = 100 Investment holding
KXERRERAF B REZR
Shandong Taifeng (note) The PRC RMB500,000,000 - 100 Production and distribution
of cotton yarns and
bedding products
\WWRRE (Hizt) H AR #500,000,0007C EERD HIRY RKm
Shanghai Taifeng Home Textile The PRC RMB1,000,000 = 100 Distribution of cotton yarns
Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Taifeng”) and bedding products
(note)
FEREZHERRA HE AR #1,000,0007T AEBY IR @

(ILB%R8]) (Hi)

Note: ~ Shandong Taifeng is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise while

Shanghai Taifeng is a domestic enterprise with limited liability.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

i WRFERIEBELE MLEREAR
—REAEREFELE-

RELFFRNERSRE SEMBARES
TAERTERES-

42. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 42. BEFERBAELEE
No significant events occurred after the end of the reporting WMEFRERBERREIERD LM &
period and up to the approval date of the financial statements. EAREBEEA-

43. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 43. bR BEE

128

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified and
restated to conform to the current year’s presentation for better
presentation of the financial statements.

9 BB B RIS A FE 0 2507 1T
HARE B R E 5 AE 7 25 RS s -
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